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TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution

April 21, 2011

LaDonna Castanuela, Chief Clerk

Office of the Chief Clerk

‘Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
- P.0. Box 13087, MC-105

Austin, Texas 78711-3087

Re: TCEQ Docket No. 2011-0359-UCR. Consideration of a request for a Commission
Order approving a contract designating service areas between the City of Garden Ridge
- and the City of Selma pursuant to Texas Water Code Section 13.248.

Dear Ms. Castafiuela:

Transmitted herewith for filing with the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
(“Commission”) are the following items as backup material for the May 11, 2011 agenda
regarding the request described above:

1. PropoSed Order, with map attached;

2. Interoffice Memorandum containing an Executive Summary;

3. Application for a Commission order approving a Texas Water Code Section 13.248

contract and the contract dated November 20, 2008;

4. Interoffice Memorandum containing analysis of the City of Garden Ridge’s financial,
managerial, and technical capability;

5. Consent forms.

Respectfully submitted,

Dol o

Douglas Brown, Staff Attorney
Environmental Law Division

P.O.Box 13087 °* Austin, Texas 78711-3087 ¢ 512-239-1000 °* www.tceq.state.tx.us

How is our customer service? ~www.tceq.state.tx.us/goto/customersurvey
printed on recycled paper : !
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AN ORDER approving an agreement designating service areas between
the City of Garden Ridge and the City of Selma pursuant to
section 13.248 of the Texas Water Code; TCEQ Docket
No. 2011-0359-UCR.

A request for a Commission order approving a contract designating service areas
between the City of Garden Ridge (Garden Ridge), Certificate of Convenience and
Necessity (CCN) No. 11253, and the City of Selma (Selma), CCN No. 11522,.in Guadahipe
County, Texas, was presented to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
(Commission) for approval pursuant to section 13.248 of the Texas Water Code and title
30, section 291.117 of the Texas Administrative Code.

 The parties entered into an agreement dated November 20, 2008, under which
Selma will transfer 7.14 acres of CCN No. 11522 to Garden Ridge, thereby incorporating
the area into Garden Ridge’s CCN area. The agreement is attached to this order. There

are currently no customers or facilities in the area to be transferred.

Contracts between retail public utilities that designate areas to be served and

customers to he served hy those retail P‘lﬂ'ﬂ‘if’ I‘I‘HH‘HPQ’ when npprnvpﬂ by the

Commission after public notice and hearing, are valid and enforceable and are
incorporated into the 'appropriate areas of public convenience and necessity. TEXAS
WATER CODE § 13.248.

The Executive Director of the Commission mailed notice of the hearing date én

which the Commission was to consider the request to Garden Ridge and Selma.
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Garden Ridge and Selma have reviewed the CCN map attached to this order and

have approved it.

The Commission held a hearing on the request at its May 11, 2011 Agenda

meeting and found the request has merit.

Garden Ridge is capable of rendering continuous and adequate water service to

the area covered by the agreement. The transfer of Selma’s authority to provide service

in the affected area, which results in Garden Ridge as the sole service provider

remaining in the area, is necessary for the service, accommodation, convenience, or

safety of the public.

NOW, THEREFORE, BEIT ORDERED BY THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY that

1.

The agreement addressing the transfer of a portlon of ‘Selma s CCN No 11522 and
designating that retail water service shall be provided by the Garden Rldge, CCN
No. 11253, in that area is hereby approved |

CCN No. 11253, held by Garden Ridge, and CCN No 11522, held by Selma, in
Guadalupe County are hereby amended in accordance with the agreement. The
transferred area is approx1mately 7. 14 acres. |

The Executlve Director is directed to redraw the Garden Ridge’s CCN No. 11253
and Selma’s CCN No. 11522 as prowded in the agreement and as set forth on the
map attached to this order and to amend the Cornniiséion’s official water serviee
area map for\ Guadalupe County, Texas. |

The Chlef Clerk of the Texas Commlssmn on Enwronmental Quahty shall forward

a copy of this order and the attached map to the partles
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If any provision, sentence, clause, or phrase of this order is for any reason held to
be invalid, the invalidity of any portion shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of the order.

Issue Date:

TEXAS COMMISSION ON
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

For the Commission
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City of Garden Ridge / City of Selma
Portion of Water Service Areas
Application No. 36744-C (13.248 Contract Service Agreement
from City of Garden Ridge, CCN No. 11253
to Transfer a Portion of City of Selma, CCN No. 11522 in Comal County)
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FORMAL AGREEMENT FOR‘ TRANSFER OF EXISTING C:.CN
November 20, 2008

To: The City of Garden Ridge [[7.5 »
The City of Selma

The City of Selma hereby agrees to officially release and transfer a
portion of their CCN 11522 on two parcels of land for a total.of 7.14
acres {4.0 and 3.14 acres} that is known as Plaza Oaks Center
Subdivision, Lots 1 thru 8 and 10 thru 15, located on FM 2252
{Nacogdoches Road}, V2 mile south of Bat. Cave Road. The Clty of _.. ..
Garden Ridge will then dssume this CCN area and these tracts will be
provided water by the Cxty of Garden Rldge, CCN 11253 -

The final approval by the TCEQ will ﬁnahze thxs agreement and allow
the City of Garden Ridge to serve these two tracts

We ' agree and consent to the above mforma’clon and request this

transfer take place immediately.
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TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Interoffice Memorandum

DATE: December 29, 2010
TO: Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
THRU: LaDonna Castafiuela, Chief Clerk
FROM: Douglas Brown, Staff Attorney, Environmental Law Division
SUBJECT: TCEQ Docket No. 2011-0359-UCR. Consideration of a request for a
Commission order approving a contract designating water service areas between

the City of Garden Ridge (Garden Ridge), Certificate of Convenience and
Necessity (CCN) No. 11253, and the City of Selma (Selma), CCN No. 11522.

DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION
Applicant: The City of Garden Ridge
Regulated Activity: Retail water utility service
- Type of Application:- ,Req'uest ,for,afCommissio‘n Order approving 1 contract
Commission Action: Hearing regarding approval. of the contract.

Authority: Texas Water Code §§ 13.248 and 13.255(a); 30 Texas Administrative
Code §§ 291.117 and 291.120

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

The (“H—y of Garden Riﬂgp (Garden Ridgp\) water certificate of convenience and

necessity (CCN) No. 11253, and The City of Selma (Selma), water CCN No. 11522,
provide retail water service in Comal County, Texas. On November 20, 2008,
Garden Ridge and Selma entered into a contract, Water Supply Contract,
regarding their respective water service areas pursuant to section 13.248 of the
Texas Water Code.

Under the contract, Selma will transfer 7.14 acres of its CCN area to Garden
Ridge, and Garden Ridge will be the sole retail water service provider in that 7.14
acre area. The 7.14 acre area contains no customers or facilities. Therefore, there
will be no transfer of customers or facilities under the contract. :



LEGAL AUTHORITY

The Texas Water Code prohibits a utility, a utility operated by an affected county,
or a water supply corporation from rendering retail water or sewer utility service
directly or indirectly to the public without first obtaining a CCN.1 Conversely,
municipality is not required to obtain a CCN to provide retail water service.?
However, a municipality may not provide service to areas that are outside of its
corporate boundaries but within the CCN of another retail public utility without
first obtaining written consent from that retail public utility.3

The Texas Water Code and TCEQ rules allow retail public utilities to enter into
service area agreements and have the Commission affirm the agreements by
amending the entities’ respective CCNs.4 A transfer of a water or sewer system
that also includes the transfer of customers and/or facilities may, in some cases,
also require separate Commlssmn approval for the transfer of customers and/or
facilitiess : - -

The requests to approve the 13. 248 agreements are not subject to the notice
provisions of section 291.106, Title 30 of the Texas Administrative Code, which
apply to applications for new and amended CCNs.. The Commission may approve
the service area agreement pursuant to section 13.248 of the Texas Water Code
with the appropriate notice under the Open Meetings Act. The Executive
Director will mail notlce of the hearing upon the setting of an Agenda date.

1 TEX. WATER CODE ANN. § 13 242(a) CVernon 2oo6)

2A mun1c1pahty is a “retail public utlhty under section 13.002(19) of the Texas Water Code but is
not a “utility” under section 13.002(23). Therefore, the section 13. 242(a) requirement that a
“utility” must obtain a CCN before providing retail water utility semce does not apply to a
municipality.

3Id. § 13.242(b).

4]d. § 13.248; 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 291.117 (West 2005) (Tex. Comm’n on Envtl. Quality,
Contracts Valid and Enforceable). Section 13.248 states “contracts between retail public utilities
designating areas to be served and customers to be served by those retail public utilities, when
approved by the commission after public notice and hearing, are valid and enforceable and are
incorporated into the appropriate areas of public convenience and necess1ty ‘Section 13.255(a)
states that “[i]n the event that an area is incorporated or annexed by a mumclpahty, ..the -
municipality and a retail public utility that provides-water or sewer service to all ot part of the
area pursuant to a certificate of convenience and necessity may agree in writing that all or part of
the area may be served by a municipally owned utility, by a franchised utility, or by the retail
public utility. ... The executed agreement shall be filed with the commission, and the commission
on receipt of the agreement shall: incorporate the terms of the agreement into the respective
 certificates of convenience and necéssity of the parties to the agreement.” -
5 TEX. WATER CODE § 13.301. The section requires that some applicants also demonstrate
“adequate financial, managerial, and technical capability for providing continuous and adequate
service to the service area being acquired and to any areas currently certificated to the person” for
the separate transaction relating to the transfer of facilities and/or customers.



BASIS FOR STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The following items were considered in developing the staff’'s recommendation:

1. Request for a Commission order approving the 13.248 contract filed by the
City of Garden Ridge and the city of Selma on June 16, 2010 (Application No.

36744-C);

2. Water Supply Contract between the City of Garden Ridge and the City of
Selma, executed on November 20, 2008;

3. Final proposed map of the water service areas subject to the aforementioned
agreement and contract;

4. Financial, Managerial, and Technical analy51s of the City of Garden Ridge to
operate in the affected area;

5. Proposed Order; and

6. Consent forms signed by repfesentatives for both the City of Garden Ridge
and The City of Selma, which give approval to the ED for the above final map.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

- Based on the facts stated in the application and the supporting documentation

“submitted by the city of Garden Ridge and the City of Selma, staff supportsthe -
request for a Commission order approving the contract designating the service
area between the City of Garden Ridge and The City of Selma. Staff has
confirmed that both parties are retail public utilities with active water CCNs and
that the area the parties are seeking to transfer is certificated to the City of Selma.
Staff is also satisfied that the City of Garden Ridge possesses the adequate
financial, managerial, and technical capability to provide continuous and
adequate service to the areas being transferred.

FalanWh ob ol aVat Cis s W Walsnlal

DILIATLL CUINILIACUIY

Douglas Brown, Environmental Law Division (239-2253)
- Kamal Adhikari, Water Supply Division (239-0680)






January 26, 2009

Ms. Tammy Benter

TCEQ |
" Utilities and Districts Section {MC 153}

P.O. Box 13708
Austin, Texas 78711

- Dear Ms. Benter: _
Thank you for your emails and responses to my questions.

- As requested, please find the original agreement you authorized and. ..
that were signed by both cities . Also, please find three copies of the

various views showing the location of the property.
Please confirm that this CNN Las been changed so I can begin work on

our water line.

I would very rﬁuch appreciate you handling this as quickly as possible! |

Warmest Regards,

8950 Garden Ridge Drive
San Antonio, Texas 78266
210-651-6485 Office
210-651-6485 Fax
210-834-5593 Mobile




FORMAL AGREEMENT FOR TRANSFER OF EXISTING CEN
November 20, 2008

To: The City of Garden Ridge |{7.5 %
The City of Selma

The City of Selma hereby agrees to officially release and transfer a
portion of their CCN 11522 on two parcels of land for a total of 7.14
acres {4.0 and 3.14 acres} that is known as Plaza Oaks Center T
Subdivision, Lots 1 thru 8 and 10 thru 15, located on FM 2252

{Nacogdoches Road}, % mile south of Bat Cave Road. The City of _ . .,

Garden Ridge will then assume this CCN area and these tracts will be. .

provided water by the Cify of Garden Ridge, CON 11253.

The final approval by the TCEQ will finalize this agreement and allow.
the City of Garden Ridge to serve these two tracts. -

We agree and consent to the above information and request this

transfer take place immediately.
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May 15, 2009

Mis. Lisa Fuentes
TCEQ, Utilities and Distriect Section

Water Supply Division
P.0O. Box 13708
Austin, Texas 78711

Dear Ms. Fuentes:
Thank you for your phone cali and giving me the information abont

what you require to get this completed.

Enclosed please find the meets and bounds of the Nacogdoches Road
property located in Comal County, San Antonio, Texas. There are four
{4} pages, as this is the document secured from Comal County

Courthounse.
You will also find the documents regarding the audit of financial

responsibility provided by the City of Garden Ridge.

The check for $100.00 for the filing fee is enclosed.
These were all of the three firal items you were needing to complete this

ﬁllng

"This pro;ect has drug on since November 08, so any help yOou. cuuld gwe
to finalize this would be greatly appreciated.

i
17

arry Rieimiaender

8950 Garden Ridge Drive
San Antonio, Texas 78266
210.651.6485 Office
210.651.6485 Fax
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FROM: W. D. MORRIS, A SINGLE YN
T6: LARRY RHEINLAENDER; JAMES G.
REETNIAENDER AND MIKE

MOLTHAN T
'éﬁftﬁziijmzéjﬁk;

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTIS:

THE STATE OF TEXAS

C. 3 - R

COUNTY OF COMAL

That I, W. D MORRIS, a single man, of Bexar CQunty, Texas,
for and in considerstion of the sum of TEN DOLIARS (§10.00) and
other valuable consxderation ko the undersigned cash in hand
pald and secured to be paid hy the GRANTEES herein naned the
recelpt of whlch is hereby acknowledged, and the further can—_
smderation of tne execution and delivery by GRANTEES of theit one

certaln promlssory note of even date herawith in the princzp&l

fsum of . THO. HUNDRBD FORTY ‘Z’&}'O THOUSAND AHD no/ lDD DQLLARS

($242,000.00), payable to the order of NEW BRAUNFELS %AVINGS SAND

’LOAN ASSOCIATION at New Braunfels, Ccmal County, Texas, as

therein provmded and bearing 1nterest at the rates therein “r
specified and provldxng for accelerntion of maturity in even; of
default and for attorney's fees, the paymént of which note is
secured by vendor's lien herein retained,.and:ig‘additionally
secured by a Deed of Trust of even date heréwith, tc_dGHN H.

DAVIS, TRUSTEE, have GRANTED, SOLD and CONVEYED, atd by these

presents do GRANT, SELL and CONVEY untb.LAiﬁf ﬁﬁéiﬁL&ENDER,‘Jﬁm?ﬁ

. RHEINLAENDER and MIKE MOLTHAN, =zl of tha fellowing described

ERRLIUN %

real property in Comal County, Texas, to-wit: . R
TRACT 1

BEING Lot 1, Morris Subdivigion, Comal County, Texas,
recorded in Volume 7, Page 186, Map and Plat Records
of Comal County, Texas; said tract of land being more
particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at an iron pin found on the southeast right-of-
way line of F.M. 2252 (Nacogdoches Road) said pin being

Yo perfpwesd CDrnen o fras /Yﬁﬂl;




vo D441 e 414

THENCE N. 57°¢ 35' 04" E, 216.03 feet continuing
along said southeast right-of-way line to an ilron
pin found at the beginning of a curve to the right;
sz2id pin also being the common most northwest corner
of sazid Lot 1 and Lot 2, Morris Subdivision:

THENCE leaving said southeast right~of-way line of
F.M., 2252, 33.32 feet along said curve to the right
having a central angle of 90° 06" 38" and a radius
of 25.00 feet to an iron pin found for the end of

_this curve;

THENCE §, 32° 18° 17" E. 535,50 feet to an iron pin
set at the sovutheast corner of this tract, said pin
also being the common most southeast corner between

gaid Lots 1 and 2;

THENCE 5. 57° 41' 43" W. 247.97 feet to an irom pin
found for the southwest corner of this tract, said
pin also being the common most southwest corner of

gsaid Lots 1 and 2:

THENCE N, 31° 35' 59" w. 560,12 feet leaving the
common line between said Lots 1 and 2 to the point
of BEGINNING and containing 3,14 acres of land, more

or less.

TRACT 2

BEING a tract of laznd out of Lot 3, Morris Subdiwvision,
Unit 2, Garden Ridge, Comal County, Texas, recorded in
-Volume B, Page 57, Map and Plat Records of Comal County,
Texas; said tract of land being more particularly '
described as follows:

BEGINNING at an iron pin found on the southeast right-
of~way line of P.M, 2252 (Nacogdoches Road) szid pin
being the northeast corner of said Lot 3, Morris Sib-
division, Unit 2, and also being the northeast corner’
of this tract; '

THENCE S. 32° 18% 17" E. 723.53 feet leaving said
southeast right-of-way line of F. M., 2252 and continuing

‘along the sontheast line of said Lot 3 to an iron pin
set for the southeast corner of this tratt; '

_THENCE S. 57% 41' 43" W_ 241 08 feet leaving said

il R A

southeast line of Lot 3 to an iron pin set on the
common line between said Lot 3 and Lot 2, Morris Sub-
division, recorded in Volume 7, Page 186, Map and Plat
Records of Comal County, Texas, said pin being the
southwest cornper of this tract; )

THENCE N,  32° 18' 17% W, 698,12 feet continuing aldong
said common line between said Lots 3 apd 2 o an ixron
pin found at the beginning of a curve to the right;

TEENCE 33.22 feet along said curve to the right having
z central zngle of £3° 53% 21" and 2 radius of 25.08
feet to an irom pin found on the southeast right-of-way
line of F.M. 2252 for the end of this curve:




:%Hﬁéifmﬁéié

: THENCE N. 57° 35+ ¢4% E. 216.13 feet ccntinuing 2long
- s&id southéast right-of~way line Sf F.M, 2252 o the
point of BEGINNING nd contaxning 4. bo acrés of land,
nore. 6r legg, i R -

This canveyance 18 maae and acCepted subject to any and
all covenants, condxtlona, reservatzons, e&aements, rights-of-way
and get back llnes, Lf any, now outstanding and of record in
Ccmal ccunty, Teanl and to all zoning luws, regulatians and
but only to the extent that they are still in effect, relating to
the hareinabove described prop&rty. L

o HAVE AND T HOLD the above desciibed premises, together
with all and singular the. rzghts and appurtenancev thfreto in

ir ,eirn and asslgns

forever, and GRANTOR does hereby bind himaelf, his heirs and

anywxse belenging, unto>thewsa1d GRARTEES,

asslgns to WARRANT AND PQRBVER DEFEND, ell gnﬁ singular, the gaid
premises unto the gaid GRANTEES, their heirs and assigns, againgt
'every person whomgoever lawfully clalmlng oz to claim the same or
any part thereaf, except ag herexnahove stated

=5 = Butjft ig expressly agreed that the vmunon's LIEN, as well

as the Superlor Title. xn and to. the above describad premises, is

\

retamned against the above described p:operty, pramises and

thereon are fully pazd accordlng o the face, tennr; eéfect and
reading thereof, when this Deed shall become absolute. The said
Vendor s Llen and Superzor T;tle herein retaxned are hereby
TRANSFERRED ASSIG&ED, SOLb and cowvszmn to NEW BRAU&F”LS SBVINGS
AND LOAN ASSOCIATION, its successcrs and asszgns, the p&yee named
in gdid note, without reaourse on GRANTOR. o

EXECUTED‘thlS the Ay477“ day of"April, igés.

DRRIS, a2 slngle man
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TEE STATE OF TEXAS

2 b oA

COUNTY OF COMAL

ADDRESS QF GRANTEES:

LARRY RHEINLAENDER

153203 spring Water
san antonio, Texas 78247

JAMES G. RHEINLAENDER
Rt. 2, Box 701a
New Braunfels, Texas 78130

MIXE MOLTHAN
2508 Flagstone
plano, . Texas 75075

knowledged before me on this, the
by W. D. MORRIS.
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NOTARY PUBLIC, SIATE OF ‘

! - 37-%9
MINNIE DAL '

[Ty




R

fes

5y




CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008




" This ﬁ'agé'sleﬁ blank infexitio}i'eilf;':.



CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

CITY OFFICIALS

MAYOR | | - - | . JAY F. FEBBELMAN
MAYOR PRO-TEM RUSS SANDERS

CITY COUNCIL S JOE BRITAN
0 o : o JOHN McCAW
BOBBY ROBERTS

JAMES YOUNG

CITY ADMINISTRATOR NANCY CAIN
CITY SECRETARY/TREASURER "LINDA KNOWLSON
ATTORNEY ' DENTON, NAVARRO, ROCHA & BERNAL, P.C.

AUDITOR " ARMSTRONG, VAUGHAN & ASSOC., P.C.

i



This page left blank intentionally.



CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

TABLE OF. CONTENTS
PAGE
TITLE PAGE ].
CITY OFFICIALS i
TABLE OF CONTENTS i
FINANCIAL SECTION
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT oo seseseessseseeesenseessoesssoeseesseesres. 1
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS et e 9
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS ocvrvroeree e e et 10
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES et o .12
" BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS oo e, 14
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND_S - BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS .o o 15
© STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS .. e 16
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
"IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENT FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ... 17
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS — PROPRIETARY FUND..ccrvimmr S 18
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET
ASSETS — PROPRIETARY FUND oo st e 19
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND...covevercnsersmnsrr: 20
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ..ot esorr e 22
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION v 2
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND ...oocccr S — o 43
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
46

BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL ...cciiiiiererertrteisms st et sis st o sn s

1ii



CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008
TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL SECTION (CONTINUED)
PAGE

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - LAST THREE
FISCAL YEEARS cotesteecer e siesses s ess s s sk e 47

OTHER S UPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

GENER.A_L FUND - COMPARATTVE BALANCE SI{EETS ................................................................ 50
GENERAL FUND - COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES

'AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE.......... e e e e s gt see e e e fa e Tieni5 1
DEBT SERVICE FUND - COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS ....cooivniieresionissiesecs i 33
DEBT SERVICE FUND - STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES

INFUND dALAN(.E 3 UD ST AND ACTUAL sttt 56
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS ..... sttt et 58
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES; AND :

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL oottt 59

iv



SHAREHOLDERS:
Nancy L. Vaughan, CPA
Deborah F. Fraser, CPA

Armstrong, Vaughan e5 Associates, PC. -
Certified Public Acconntants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorzable Mayor and City Council
City of Garden Ridge, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Garden Ridge,
Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the City of Garden Ridge, Texas’, management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable -assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the government activities, the business-type activities, each major find
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Garden Ridge, Texas, as of
September 30, 2008, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles Uenerally accepted in the Umted States of Amenca

The management’s discussion and analys1s and budgetary comparison information and schedule of
funding progress on pages 2 through 9 and 43 through 48, are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. ‘

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the ﬁnancjai staternents that collectively
comprise the City of Garden Ridge, Texas’, basic financial statements. The other supplementary

information 1s presented for purposes of additional analysis and 15 nOt & requiied parl 0L 1nese basic
financial statements. The other supplementary information, has been subjevted to the aunditing
procedures apphed in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all

material respects, in relation 1o the basic-financial statements taken as a whole,
Ve / ot 1

Armstrong, Vaughan & Assoc., P.C.

January 19, 2009

941 West Byrd Blvd Suite 101 » Universal Ciry, Texas 78148
Phoue 210-658-6229 » Fox: 210-659-7611. « Email: vaughan@avacpa.com * www. avacpa.com
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of City of Garden Ridge’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the
City’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended 09/30/2008. Please read it in conjunction with

the City’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL BEIGHLIGHTS

taxes and other revenues for the general fund,
were added this year.

unrestricted.

capital lease in the current year for the purchase of four police vehicles.

information.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This . annual report consists _Bf-i"tﬁiree' parts—management 5

discussion. and analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information. The basic

: “figancial statements -include two - kinds -of - statements -that- -

The City’s total combined net assets were §14,275,556 at September 30, 2008.

During the year, the City’s operating expenses were $64,304 less than the $1,791,327 generated in
The total cost of the City’s programs was virtually unchanged from last year, and no new programs
The oeneral fund reported z fund belance this year of $1,462,558 of which $1 454,790 is

The City issued no debt during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2008. The City entered into 2

See Note 7 for more

Figure A-1, Required Components of the
City’s Annual Financial Report

present different views of the City: : A A
e The first two statements are government-wide financial WHanagenent' s i Basic Required
statements that provide both lomg-term and short-term | Discassion SF“’a”Cia‘ : 5‘;;’;'::’;?;?
. . . . t t
information about the City’s overall financial status. and tatements
e The remaining statements are fund financial statements
that focus on individual parts of the - government, JPRe Y
reporting the City’s operations in more detail then the e T
SOVEIIMeni-wWide Stateenis. p - S
oS TE T T e
" e,
o The governmental funds statements tell how general ' !
government services were financed in the shorr term as
: 4 Government-Wide " Fund Hotea
well as what remains for future spending. il i o e
, Statements | Statemernts ? al
o Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term Statement
financial information about the activities the government '
1

operates like businesses, such as water and sewer

services.

The financial statements also include rotes that explain some of
the information in the financial statements and provide more

Surﬁmary <L

> Detail

detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of reguired supplementary information that

2



further explains and suppotts the information in the financial statements. Figure A-1 shows how the
required parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another.

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the Clty s ﬁnancml statements, including the portlon of the
City government they cover and the types of informatian they contair, The remainder of this overview

section of management’s discussion and analysis explams the structure and contents of eaoh of the
statements.

A ba 3

Figure 4-2. Major Features of the City's Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Tund Statements

_ Tvpe of Stectements. Government-wide Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds
o | o " |The’activities of the city that "~ |Activities the city
Scope {except fiduciary funds) and are not proprietary or fidugiary = operatés stmilar tosprivate
the Agency's component units businesses: self insurance
» Staterrienit of et assefs. ) a1k Balnnce Sheet - . - © ' + Statement of net agsets
+ Statement of activities « Statement of revenues, e*{pendltures . Statcment of revenues,
Required financial & changes in fund balances expenses & clmnaes in
Staterienls ... . o n L . . .. |fund netassets -
' ‘ ' ~ |Statement of cash ﬂows .
Accounting basis and Accrual accounting and ' Modified accrual accounting and Accrual accounting and
measuremen! focus cconomlc resources focus . |current fingncial resources focus . jeconomic resources focus
' T All assets and liabilities,  [Only assets expected o be tised ap |All assets and lisbilities,
Tvpe of " Iboth findncial and capital. " | arid liabilities thdt cofne due dur:ihQ 1both financial zhd capital,
asset/liablity short-term and long-term the year or soon thereafter. no and shorl-term and long-term
informanon no capital assets included '
All revenues and Revenues for which cash is received All revenues and expenses
expenses during year, during or soon after the end of the during year, regardless of
Type of ' regardiess of when cash “ lyear; expendituires when-goods of when cash 1s receivéd or
inflow/outflow - |is received or paid < ot services have been received and paid
mformation " . Ipaymént is dué during the yedr of
. |’3o00n theredfter. s . R . e,

Government-Wide Statements

The govemment-mde statements repdtt inf ormation about the Cityasa whole using accounting methodq
similar to those used by private:séttor companies. The statement of net assets includes all of the
government’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are aceounted for in
the statemem of activities regardless of when cash is received ot pzud

The two government-wide statements report the City’s net assets and how- they have changed. Net
assets—the difference between the City’s assets and liabilities—is one way to measure :the City's
financial health or position.
»  Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are an indicator of Whéthcr its financial
health is improving or détérierating, respectively.
o To assess the overall health of the Clty, one needs to consxder addmonal nonfinancial factors such’
as changes in the Clty s tax base

The government-wide ﬁnancial statements of the City include the Governmental activities. Most of the
City’s basic services are included here, such as public safety, public. works and general administration.
Property taxes, franchise fees and charges for services finance most of these activities.




Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant
funds—not the City as a whole.- Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific

sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.
e - Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

e The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or
to show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants.

The City has the following kinds of funds:

e Govermmental funds—Most of the City’s basic services are included in governumental funds, which
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and
out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the
government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental
funds statement, or on the subsequent page, that explain the relationship (or differences) between

them.

, Proprietafy funds%Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported.in -
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long-term

_ and short-term financial information.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE
Net assets. The City’s combined nét assets were $14,275,556 at September 30, 2008. (See Table A-I).

) Table A-1
City of Garden Ridge Net Assets
(In thousands dollars)
Total .
Governmental Business-Type Percentage
Activities Activities Total " Change
2008 - 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008-2007
Current Assels:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,791.8 $1477.0 % 1,383.7 $1,0635 § 3,1755 $ 2,540.5 25.0%
Internaj Balances 6.1 © 182.6 (6.1) (182.6) - - 0.0%
Other Receivables . - 87.5 49.2 94.3 68.3 S N Y TP
Prepaid Expenses 1.5 2.1 - - 1.5 2.1 -28.3%
Restricted Assets: Cash ’ 2354 2517 873.9 756.4 1,109.3 - 1,008.1 10.0%
Deferred Charges - Bond Costs 503 571 - - 50.3 571 -11.9%
Total Current Assets 2.172.7 2.019.7 2.345.7 1.705.6 4.518.4 3.725.3 21.3%

Noncurrent Asselts: ) '

Land 461.4 4614 148.3 148.3 . 609.8 609.7 0.0%
Water Rights : - - .46.8 46.8 46.8 46.3 0.1%

- Bujldings & Improvements 3,601.7 3,601.7 87.7 87.8 3,689.4 3,689.5  0.0%
Equipment 424.5 297.1 . 2914 226.1 715.9 5232 36.8%
Infrastructure 4,795.8 47958 4276.8 4,276.8 9,072.6 9,072.6 0.0%
Less Accumulated )

Depreciation ' (2.629.0) (2.328.2) (1.748.3) (1.575.3) (4.377.3) (3.803.5) 12.1%
Total Noncurrent Assets 6.654.4 6.827.8 3.102.8 3210.3 ©.757.2 10.038.3 -2.8%
Tora] Assets § 8.827.0 $8.847.5 § 54483 $49016.1 $ 14.275.6 $ 13.763.6 3.7%




- Table A-1 (Continued) -
Table A-1 ST
City of Garden Ridge Net Assets

(In thousands dolldi:s)

S , N Total
Governmental Busmess«Type . Percentage
Activities Activities ._Total ’ Change
. 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008-200"
Currvent Liahilities: P e o o
Accounts Payable and
Accrued. Liabilities $  196.1 $ 2009 $ 315 8§ 875 § 2275 . § 2884 =21 1%
Deferred Revenue : - 2‘4.1 i - ) . 24 -100.0%
Total Current Liabilities 196.1 5 3l T #3 3975 2908 -21.8%
Long-Term Liabilities: S : o <
Deposits Payable 4.8 4.4 326.0 282.1 330.7 286.5 15.4%
Bondsand Lease Payable . 3.8315 .. 40000. . ... ., . .. .~ 38315 _ 40000 -4 2%
Total Liabilities 40324 42077 3574 3696 _ 43898 43773 -41%
Net Assets: A SRR S R
Invested in Capital Asseis T2.8228 ¢ 23664 . 3,100.8 - 32105 5 95,6 . 6.3%
Donations e S 63 B e e e 63 S78.1%
Debi Services < i A ) IV S - - oan " 338.1%
Police Special R 3 0 B % A N ©7100.0%
Impact Fees * . Eic R 15L2 - 8739 T7s64 L0274 100.0%
Unrestrieted - - iU 163680 . 19995 < L4 T 579,60 o 27500 o uS19.L ., 6.7%
Total Net A ysets 4.794.7 4,639.8 5.091,1 4.546.5 9.885.8 9.186.3 7 T.6%
Total Liabilities & Net Assets 5 8.827.0 $8.8472.5 $54485  $4916.1 §142756  $13.763.6 3.0,

Approximately $153.517 of the City’s restricted net assets represents street impact fees collected that can
only be sperit on street improvements. The $1,443,923 of unresiricted net asset represents resources,
available to fund programs of the City next year, o

Chan‘ges in Net Assets The City's total revenues were $3,637,289. A significant portion, 41.2 percent.
of the City’s revenue comes from taxes. No percent comes from state aid or grants, while 53.7 percent

relates to charges for services.

The total cost of all prom‘ams and services was $3,006,034 and charges for these services were
$1,953,836. SR :

Governmental Activities

» Property tax rates remained at $.221024 Per $100 assessed value. This coupled with the 1ncreasmcr"
values enabled an increase of tax revenues to $1,024,432.

» The City purchased vehiclés through capital lease finaneing.



Table A-2
Changes in City of Garden Ridge’s Net Assets
(In thousands dollars)

Total
Governmental Business-Type Percentage
Activities Activities Total Change
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008-2007
Program Revenues: ‘ '
Charges for Services ‘§ 5758 $ 610.6 3 1.378.0  $1,188.2 § 1,933.8 $1,798.8 8.6%
Operating Grants ) .
& Contributions 12.7 29.6 - - 12.7 29.6 -37.1%
Capital Grants E
& Contributions 4 - 127.3 - 276.5 - 403.8 -100.0%
General Revenues: _ : .
Property Taxes 1,024.4 895.2 - - 1,024.4 895.2 14.4%
Tax Franchise 285.8 234.5 - - 285.8 2345 @ 21.9%
Sales Taxes 188.1 216.8 - - . 188.1 216.8 -13.3%
Investment Earnings 15.4 50.7 582 67.8 73.6 . 158.5 -53.5%
Other . 98.8 87.2 - - 98.8 87.2 13.4%
Total Revenues 2.201.1 2.291.9 14362 __1.532.5 3.6373 __3.8244  -4.9%
General Government 508.4 413.6 - .- 508.4 415.6 22.3%
Public Safety 922.0 . 869.8 - - 922.0 869.8 6.0%
Public Facilities 574.3 1,034.0 - - 5743 1,034.0 -44 5%
Municipal Court - 403 43.4 - R 403 43.4 -7.1%
Debt Service 163.4 125.0 - - 1634 125.0 30.7%
Water - - 797.6 701.9 797.6 7019 13.6%
Total Expenses 2.208.4 2.487.8 797.6 701.9 3.006.0 3,189.7 -5.8%
Excess (Deficiency) . .
Other Resources, Uses & (7.3) (195.9) 638.6 830.6. 631.3 634.7 -0.5%
Transfers 159.2 (1.0) (159.2) 1.0 ) - - 0.0%
_ Increase (Decrease)in =~ . . ‘ ' o
Net Assets $ 1518 §(19697 § 4794 "3 8316 _§ 6313 _§ 6347 ~ -0.5%"

Table A-3 presents the cost of each of the City’s largest fanctions as well as each function’s net cost
(total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what was

funded by state revenues as well as local tax dollers.

s The cost of all governmental activities this year was $1,619,844.
o However, the amount that our taxpayers paid for these activities through taxes was $1,498,272.

o Some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs $575,849.

.Table A-3
Net Cost of Selected City Functions
(in thousands of dollars)

Toral Cost of Net Cost of
Services . Services
2008 2007 % Change 2008 2007 % Change

General Administration 5 508.4 3 415.6 22.3% 3 53.3: $ 2.6 2026.5%
Police Protection 922.0 869.8 6.0% 786.5 637.6 23.4%
Municipal Court 403 434 -7.1% 403 434 -7.1%
Public Facilities 574.3 1,034.0 44 5% 574.3 206.7 -36.7%
Debt Service — Interest

& Fiscal Charges 163.4 ’ 1251 30.6% ) 163.4 1251, 30.6%
“Wazer Services 797.6 701.9 13.6% (580.4) (762.8) -23.8%



Business-Type Activities
Revenues' of the City’s business-type activities were $1, 436 224, and expenses were $797,629.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUND

Revenue from government fund types totaled $2.198,225. The ircrease in local revenues is a result of
significant residential development and increases in ad valorein tax base as well as charges for services.
Additionally significant population growth necessitates increaséd local revenues to offset resultmg
increased local expenses.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the City revised its budget one time. Even with these adjustments, éctu’al
expenditures were $62,850 below final budget amounts. The most significant positive variance resulted
from defen ing stadding and capital expenditures.

On the;,_(')ther- hand, resources available were §91,231 less than the final budgeted amount.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

At the nd of 2008 the City had invested $14,134,475 in a b:oad range of Cdplldl assets. mcludma land
equipment. bm!dmws and + .ehtc!es. (SeeT ble A~ 4.,

Table A4

City’s Capital Assets
(In thousands of dollars)
- " Toral
Governmental Business-Type R Péreentage
: Activities © . Activities . Total " Chahge
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008-2007
Land . $ .. 4614 3 4614 3 148.3 5 - 1483 3 609.8 B 609.7 - 00%
Water Rights v - - sed 4y 68 Ld6s 0%
Buildings and Improviments ) 3.601°7 R i ‘g18 T 34894 36805 0%
Other Improvements - - 42768 " 4276.8 43768 44763 (v
Equtpment 424 .5 297.1 291.4 226.1 7159 523.2 36.8%
Infrastructure 47958 4,958 - .. 47958 . 47958 0.0%
Totals at Historical Cost 9834 91560 L4850 47858 T 141345 BOATE 4%
Total Accumulated Depreciatior (2,629.0) 2,328.2) (1,748.3) (1.575.3) (4.371.3) (3.903.5) 12.1%

Net Capital Assets § 66544 5 68278 °§ :3,1028 $§ 32105 3 97572 $ 10,0383 -2.8%

The City’s fiscal year 2008 capital projects funds were used for capital outlay during this fiscal year.
More detailed information about the City’s capital assets is presented in the notes to the financial
statements.



Long Term Debt
At year-end the City had $3,770,000 in bonds outstanding and $61,546 in capital lease payments as
shown in Table A-5. More detailed information about the City’s debt is presented in the notes to the
financial statements.

Table A-3

City’s Long Term Debt
" (i thousands of dollars)

Toral
Govermnmental Business-Type Percentage
Activites Activities Total Change
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008-2007
Bonds Payable $ 37700 $  4,000.0 $ - $ - ¥ 3,770.0 $  4,000.0 -5.8%
Capiral Lease Payablé 61.5 - - - 61.5 - N/A
Tow! Bonds & Lease Payable $ 38315 § 40000 K - $ - $ 35,8315 $ 4,000.0 -4.2%

ECONOMIC FACTORS, NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

e Appraised values used for the 2009 budget preparation were up $533,698,682, or 11.4%.

General operating fund spending increased in the 2009 budget from $1,811,603 to-$1,983,610.
This was a 9.5% increase. Revenues increased in the 2009 budget from $1,883,558 to $2,013,619
which was a 6.9% increase. _ _

e Franchise revenues are continuing to grow with increased property tax population.

e Permit fees are expected to decrease due to the current economic downturm. '

Other significant items planned for next year:

o The City is razing the old City Hall.

e Enhancements at Paul Davis Park are scheduled.

e The City is updating the Water Master Plan and Street Master Plan

" The City raised employee “wages 1o ‘be ‘comparable-with the: “mid-range” of cities salaries in the
South Texas Aresa. ‘ B

o The City raised retirement participation from a 1.t0 1toa 2 to 1 participation rate.

These indicators were taken into account when adopting the general fund budget for 2009. Property
taxes will increase due to the increasing values even with a rate decrease. The City will use these
increases in revenues to finance programs the city currently offers as well as constructing the municipal

parkway.

Tf these estimates are realized, the City’s budgetary general fund balance is not expected to change

'appremaoly’oy the ciose of 2009:
CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide Garden Ridge citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors
and creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability
for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial

information, contact the City Administrator by phone 210-651-6632.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by the
GASB. The sets of statements include: ' '

e Government — wide financial statements

¢ Fund financial statements:
- Governmental funds
- Proprietary funds

In addition, the notes to. the financial statements are included to provide information that.is.
essential to z user’s understanding of the basic financial statements.

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Receivables:

Taxes (Net of Uncollectibles)

Other
Internal Balance
Prepaid Expenses
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Investments
Deferred Charge - Bond Issuances Costs
Capital Assets:

Land

Water Rights

Buildings and Improvements

Water Lines and Extensions

Equipment and Vehicles

Infrastructure

Accumulated Depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Primary Government

Governmental

_ Agtivities

Business-Type
Activities

_ Total

§ 1,791,826

4,798 . 4.798.
82,711 94,291 177,002
6,149 (6,149) ]
1,505 . 1,505
2353727 873.891 11109263 -
50,322 . 50.322
461,414 148,342 609.756
i 46.825 46,805
2.601.682 47,748 3,689,420
. 4.276.790 4.276,790
424,487 291,408 715.895
4,795,779 ; 4,795,779
(2.629.012) (1,748.294) (4.377.306)

$ 1,383,671

§ 3,175,497

§ 8.827,033

§ 5448523

§ 14.275.556
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Primary Government

Governmental ~ Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities: :
Accounts Payable 3 105,275 3 9,493 $ 114,772
Vacation Leave Payable - 45,114 13,274 58,388
Acorued Liabilities 24,806 8706 33,512
Accrued Interest Payable 20,873 J C- 20,873
Payable from Restricted Assets: ‘ ,
Customer Deposits 4,761 126,082 130,843
Impact/Prepaid Fees - 199,870 199,870
Noncurrent Liabilities: .
Due within One Year 294,187 - 294,187
Due in more than One Year 3,537,359 : - 3,537,359 .
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,032,379 357425 4.389,804
Net Asseis:
Investment in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt . 2,822,804 3,102,819 5,925,623
Restricted for: - ' ,
Donations 6,263 " . 6,263
Impact Fees 153,517 . 873,891 1,027,408
Debt Service 93,744 - 93,744
PD Asset Forfeiture 81,855 - 81,855
Unrestricted 1,636,471 1,114,388 2,750,859
TOTAL NET ASSETS : 4,794,654 5,091,098 9,885,752
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND .
NET ASSETS B $ 8,827,033 $ 5,448,523 $ 14,275,556

‘See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES .

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Program Revenues

Charges for

Operating
Grants and

Capital
Grants and

Functions and Programs Expénses Services Contributions  Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
General Administration $ (508411) § 446,091 § 7,031 -
Police Protection +(921,956) 129,758 5,681 : N
Municipal Court (40,300) - - -
Public Facilities (574,335) - = g
Interest on Long-term Débt (163.403) _ - - -
Total Governmental Activities (2.208.405) 575,849 12,712 :
Business-Type Activities:
Water\Sewer Utility . (797,631) 1.377.989 - :
Total Business-Type Activities (797.631) 1.377.989 b
Total Primary Government $(3,006,036) § 1,953.838 $ 12,712 $ -

General Revenues:
Taxes:
General Property Taxes
Franchise Taxes
Sales Taxes
Interest and Investment Earnings
Impact Fees
Miscellaneous .
Total General Revenues

Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Prior Period Adjustment
Net Assets at End of Year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
- Activities Activities Total
0% (55,289) -3 - % (55289
(786,517) - (786,517)
(40,300) . (40,300)
~ (574,335) . (574,335)
" (163,403) - (163,403)
(1,619,844) - (1,619,844)
- 580,358 580,358
- 580,358 - 580,358
(1,619,844) 580,358 (1,039,486)
1,024,432 - 1,024,432
285,789 - 285,789
188,051 - 188,051
15,390 58,237 73,627
43,596 - 43,596
55,246 ;- 55,246
1,612,504 58,237 1,670,741
159,179 (159,179) -
151,839 479,416 631,255
4,639,781 4,546,342 9,186,123
3,034 65,340 68,374
$4794654  $5,091,098  § 09,885,752




ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Receivables:
Taxes (Net of Uncollectibles)
Other
Due From Other Funds
Prepaid Expenses
Restricted Assets: Cash
TOTAL ASSETS

CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Deposits

Deferred Revenue

TAAT LY Y T
IO AL LA

er}
r~
=
-~

FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances:
Reserved For Prepaid Expenses
Reserved for Donations
Reserved for Street Impact Fees
Reserved For Debt Service
Reserved for PD Asset Forfeiture
Reserved for Capital Projects
Unreserved/Undesignated
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

Ofher

Major Funds Nonmajor Total
Debt Capital Government ~ Government

General Service Projects . _...Funds Funds
$ 1,507,039 § 92,198 § 192,589 - § S - 8 1,791.826
3,252 1,546 - - 4,798
82711 - - - 82,711
6.149 - - - 6.149
1505 - - . 1,505
. - 153517 81,855 . 235372
§ 1600656 3 93744 § 346.106  § 81855 & 2.122.36!
$ 105279 % - & -8 - $ 105279
- 24,806 . - . © 24,806
4,761 - . . 4,761
3.252 1.546 - - 4.798
138.098 1,546 - - 139.644
1,505 - - . 1,503
6.263 - - - 6,263
- 153,517 - 153.517
92,198 - - 92.19%
- - - 81,855 81.855
- - . 192,589 - 192,589
1,454,790 - - 1454790
1.462.558 92,198 346.106 81.855  1.982.717
§ 1600656 § 93,744 § 346,106 § 81855 & 2.122.36]

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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‘ CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

TOTAL FUND BALANCE - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets

are different because:

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Other. iong-tenn assets are 0ot available to pay for current period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. :

Accrued vacation leave payable is not due and payable in the current period
znd, therefore, not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, not reported in the funds. '

Accrued interest payable on long-term bonds is not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, not reported in the funds.

Deferred Charges - Bond issuance costs are deferred in Statement of
of Activities e e e I

TOTAL NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$ 1,982,717

6,654,350

4798
(45,114)
(3.831,546)
(20,873)

50,322

$ 4,794,654

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

t

Other
Major Furids Nonrtidjor Total
Debt Capital Government Government
General _Service, . Projects ~ _  Funds  _ Funds
REVENUES S T o o
Taxes $ 883082 § 330,561 § - 3 - 8 1213643
Franchise Fees 285,788 - - - 285.788
Licenses and Permits ' 357210 . - AT N -~ .. 337210
Charges far Services 88.881 - Coe .- - - 88.881
Fines and Forfeits 72,502 - - 57,256 129.758
Other Sources _103.864 3973 . 13,628 1,480 122,943
TOTAL REVENUES 1791337 334534 - 13628 © - 58736  2.198.073
EXPENDITURES
Current: : Co S e o
General Gaovernment 519,470 . - o . 319.470
Municipal Court 39.733 < B ‘ L 39.733
Public Safety ) 861,237 . - 49,615 910.832
Public Facilities 210.382 Greo e 4,308 ST 214,690
Capital Qutlay 157747 o 140188 171,933
Debt Service 23.034 422,919 - - 445,953
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . O 1.811.603 422919 18,496 L 49615 . 2.302.633
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (20.276) (88.385) (4.868) 9.121 (104.408)
RN : e o . R
OTHER SOURCES (USES) ‘ .
Proceeds from Capital Lease 84,580 - ~ - - 84.580
Operating Transfers (In) - 159.179 - L - 159.179
TOTAL OTHER o v o '
SOURCES (USES) 84.380 139.179 - - 243,739
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Sources Over (Under) ’
Expenditures and Other (Uses) 64.304 ' 70.794 (4.868) 9.121 139.35]
Fund Balances - October | 1,375,220 21,404 350.974 72,734 1,820.332
Prior Period Adjustment ’ 3,034 - - - 23.034
Fund Balances - September 30 § 1462558 3 92,198 §  346.106 5 81.855 § 1,982.717

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAN CES OF

GOVERNMENT FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

~ NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 139,351

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities

are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by

- which depreciation exceeded capital outlays. (173,467)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (1,162)

The issuznce of long-term debt (e.g. bonds and capital leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal
of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. : 273,034

Proceeds of long-term debt (including capital leases) recorded as an other
 financing source fqr governmental funds but it 1s not recorded in the statement
of activities. Proceeds of long-term debt are liabilities. .~~~ (84,580)

Boné Issuance cost amortized ovef life of Bond (6,776)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported 2s expenditures in
governmental funds: '
12,446

Accrued Interest
_ Compensated Absences : (7,007)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $§ 151,839

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
' 17



CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

2008 2007

ASSETS
Current Assets: . : _

Cash and Investments $ 1,383,671 § 1.063.459
Accounts Receivable - Customers 94,291 _ 68,307
Total Current Assets 1,477,962, 1.131.766

Restricted Assets: ; o ‘ o ‘

Cash 4 - 873891 156362
Total Restricted Assets : o 873801 756,362

Capital Assets: foned
Land : L 148340 148.342
Water Rights T 46,835 46,875
Buildings , ~ A ' 87,748 87,748
Water Lines, Wells & Tanks - 4,276,790 4,276,799
Vehicles & Equipment ' ‘ U 291,408 226,068
Accumulated Depreciation v C(1,748284) 1 (1,575572)

Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation ' 3,102,819 3.210.45]
TOTAL ASSETS . 8 5454672 § 5098579

LIABILITYIES AND NET ASSETS_

Liabilities: ‘ S
Accounts Payable ‘ ‘ $ 9,493 § 72,885
Vacation Leave Payable 13,274 8,184
Accrued Liabilities | 8,706 © 8551
Due to Other Funds ) 6,149 182,510
Payable from Restricted Assets: . - - B
Customer Deposits o B ‘ 126,082 141,502
Water Impact Fees 46,005~ 46.003
‘Prepaid Fees 153,867 - 124602

Total Liabilities 363,574 - 552,237

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt ) 3,102,819 3,210,451
Restricted Water Impact Fees 873,891 756,362
Unrestricted ' 1,114,388 579,529

Total Net Assets 5,091,098 4,546,342
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 5,454,672 $§ 5,098,579

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET
ASSETS —PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

See accompanying notes o basic financial-statements.
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2008 2007

OPERATING REVENUE

Water Sales § 1,144,538 § 616,144

Meter Installation Fees 118,362 129,850

Impact Fees 91,650 424,958

Other , 23,439 17,287
TOTAL OPERATING REVEN‘UE 1,377,989 1,188,239

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Costs 228,712 212,815

Plant Operations and Maintenance 283,039 229,059

General and Adminis_trative 111,908 86,398

~ Depreciation 172,972 173,612
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 797,631 701,884
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 580,358 486,355

NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)

Interest Income ' 58,237 67,728
TOTAL NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES) 58,237 67,728
INCOME (1.OSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS ) |
AND TRANSFERS 638,595 554,083

‘Contributions from Developers : - 276,474

Transfers In (Out) ‘ (159,179 1,026
'CHANGE INNET ASSETS 479,416 831,583

NET ASSETS - OCTOBER 1 4,546,342 3,714,759

Prior Period Adjustment ‘ 65,340 -

NET ASSETS - SEPTEMBER 30 § 5,091,098 $§ 4,546,342




CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPR[ETARY FUND
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

" 2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES o o
Cash received from customers . $ 15395’,850 —$ 1,216,390
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (456,184) (206,390)
Cash paid to employees’ fot services and benefits (224,622) (212.266)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY o
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ; _ 715,044 . 797,734
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL & RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES | , | g
Capital Acquisition ' - T (58.950)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL ST S E
& RELATED FINA_NC]NG ACTIVITIES o= (58.950)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPTTAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers In (Qut) o y (159,179 )" $006
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds (176 361) ' 99,670
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY e R R R
NONCAPITAL FINANC]NG ACTIVITIES ‘ (335,540) "~ 100696
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income S . 67.7°8
NET CASH PROVIDED(USED) BY B
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 58,237 67.728
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH L - 907.208
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT OCTOBER 1 1,819,821 912,613

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT SEPTEMBER 30 $ 2,957,562 § 1,819,821

Noncash Capital Financing Activities — Duriiag the year'ended September 30, 2007 developers |
constructed water and sewer lines with an estimated value of $330,764 respectively and donated the
infrastructure to the proprietary fund.

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS

‘COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS (CONT.)

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income .
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in Vacation Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid Fees
Increase (Decrease) in Deposits Payable/Impact Fees
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

2008 2007
580,358 486,355
172,972 173,612
(25,984) 28.151
(61,237) 72,731

5,090 549
29,265 27,062
14,580 9.274

715,044 797,734

See accompanying notes-to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 '

NOTE 1 ~- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. Proprietary type funds apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well
as Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statemierits and Thterpretations, APB Opinions, and
ARB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict

with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are
described below:

A. THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

In evaluating how to define the government for financial purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity
was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity.”
The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the concept of financial accountability. A
primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal entity. It
is also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting
majority of an organization's governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to
impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. Based on the foregoing criteria, there
were no component units identified that would require inclusion in this report.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities. Government-wide statements report information on all of the activities of the City. The
effect of interfund transfers has been removed from the government-wide statements but continues to
be reflected on the fund statements. Governmental activities are supported mainly by taxes and
‘intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged
to external parties for goods and services.

The statement of activities reflects the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use
or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included in program revenues are reported
as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. The
General Fund, Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Fund meet the criteria of a major
governmental fund. The City’s other governmental fund is the Special Revenue Fund. This fund is
reflected in a separate column in the Balance Sheet, Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This measurement focus is also used for the
proprietary - fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a lability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Revenue types,
which have been accrued, are revenue from the investments, intergovernmental revenue and charges
for services. Property taxes are recognized in the year for which they are levied. Grants are
recognized as revenue when 21l applicable eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met.

Governmental fund level financial statements are reported using current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafier to pay liabilities of the current period.
Measurable and available revenues include revenues expected to be received within 60 days after the
fiscal year ends. Receivables which are measurable but not collectible within 60 days after the end
of the fiscal period are reported as deferred revenue. Property taxes which were levied on January 1,
2007, and became due October 1, 2007 have been assessed to finance the budget of the fiscal year
beginning October 1, 2007 and, accordingly, have been reflected as deferred revenue and taxes

receivable in the fund financial statements at September 30, 2008.

Expenditures- generally are- recorded when a fund liability is incurred; however, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are

recorded only when the liability has matured and payment is due.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is-the general operating fund of the City and is always classified as a major fund.
The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.. Major revenue sources include property taxes, charges for services,
intergovernmental revenues and investment of idle funds. Primary expenditures are for general

govermmrent, public-sefety;publie-facilifies, municipal court and capital acquisition

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for all funds collected and disbursed in the retirement of

governmental debt.

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
or construction of major capital facilities. o

The City’s non-major governmental fund is the Special Revenue Fund.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

NOTE 1 -- SUMMY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT )

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION (CONT) '

Proprietary fund level financial statements are used to account for activities similar to those often
found in the private sector. The measufemeit fociis"is tipon détefimination bf nét fisome! financial
position and cash flows. The City’s Proprietary Fund is the Water-Works and Sewer Fund (used to
account for the provision of water and séwer services to résidents).  The Proprietafy Fund is
accourited for usmg the accrual basis of accountmg as follows: : ‘

L Revenues ate recogmzed When eamed and expenses are recogmzed when the habdltles are
inéurted, L : e ‘ :

2. Curreit-year contrlbutxons, adiinistrative” ‘expenses and beneﬁt payments whishiare: not
teceived or patd urml the subsequent year are accrued : C

Pro’prl‘etat‘y funds distihguish' dperating. revenues and extpenses’ from hoti-operatifig. - -Operating

revenues and expenses generally result from prowdmg services and producing ard délivering g ooods ,

in connection w1‘rh aprohrletarv funr{ s prmmpal dngoing opefnt'ons

D. CASH AND CASI-I EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equwalents mclude cash deposits and investments Wl‘(‘.h a matunty date Wﬁhm three
3) months of the date acqmred by the Clty

£ INVESTMENTS -+ -

State statutes authorize the City to invest in (a) obligations of the United States or its agencies and
instrumentalities; (b) direct obligations of the State of Texds or its'agencies; (c) other-obligations. the
principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas or the
. ‘United States; (d) obligations of states, agencies, ¢ounties, cities, and other political subdivisions of
- ary state having béen rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized irivestment rating firm
-and having received a rating of not lessithan A or its equivalent; (e) cértificates of dépesit by state
and national batiks domiciled in this state-that are (i) guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit
[nsurance Corporatior or its sitceessor; or, (i) secured by obligations that are described by (a) =.(d);
or, (e). Statutes also allow investing in local government investment pools organized and rated in
" adgsrdance with the Interlocal Cooperation Act, whose assets consist excliisively-of-the obligations
of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities and repurchase assessmerits involving those
same obligations. The City has all its monies in interest bearing checking accounts, savings
dccourits, money market accounts investments in TexPool.or certificates: of deposit: Earnings from
these investments are added to each account monthly or quarterly. Investments are carried at fair
value in accordance with GASB 31.
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" CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

F. ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE

Property taxes are levied based on taxable value at January 1 prior to September 30 and become due
October 1 and past due after January 31. Accordingly, receivables and revenues for property taxes
are reflected on the government-wide statement based on the full accrual method of accounting.
Property tax receivables for prior year’s Jevy are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible.

Accounts recefvable from other governments include amounts due from grantors for approved Agan;cs
for specific programs and reimbursements for services performed by the City. Program grants are
recorded as receivables and revenues at the time all eligibility requirements established by the

provider have been met.
Reimbursements for services performed are recorded as receivables and revenues when they are
carned in the government-wide statements. Included are fines and costs assessed by the court action

and billable services for certain contracts. Revenues received in advance of the costs being incurred
are recorded as deferred revenue in the fund statements. Receivables are shown net of an allowance

for uncollectibles.
G. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

During the course of operations, numerous fransactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other
 funds” or “due to other funds” on the fund statements. Any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial

statements as “internal balances”.

H. RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain deposits and payments of Enterprise Fund, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, .are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by
agreements. Funds are also segregated to provide for debt services as provided under bond indenture

agreements.

I. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, equipment, and infrastructure assets,
are reported in the applicable governmental or business type activities column in the government- -
wide financial statements. Capital assets such as equipment are defined as assets with a cost of
$5,000 or more. Infrastructure assets include City-owned streets, sidewalks, curbs and bridges.
Capital assets are recorded at historical costs if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are

recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The Costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Interest has not been capitalized during the construction

period on property plant and equipment.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE; TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 -

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT)

I. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONT.)

1

Capital assets are depreciated using the stralcht—lme method over the followmg estnnated useful

lives:
ASSETS T ' Time Period
Buildings and Improvements ' S 20 to 40 years
thrqvemeﬁits Otherthan Buildings ' S 201040 years'
Utility System in Service | . 10 to 50 years’
V'Ma:éhine'ry 'ein_dv Equlpment . St T 3 to 10 yedrs

J. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Employees carn vacation leave at a rate of 3.70 hours per bi-weekly pay period after completion of
probationary period. Employees earn sick leave at the rate of 1.85 hours per bi-weekly pay period.

Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resoyrces is réported as an expenditure and 2 fund Hiability of the governmental fund that
will pay it.” Vested of accumulated vacation leave of the Enterprlse Fund 18 recorded as'an expense
and liabil ity 6f 'that fund a$ the benefits accrue 6 émployees. Accumulated vacation pay- at
Septembet 30, 2008,  of $13,274 and $45,114 has been recorded in accrued habthtxes of the
. Enterprise Fund and the General Fund respectively. Co

No sick leave days are paid when an emiployee leaves city employment and no lla.blll'[y is repOrted for
unpa1d sick leave.

Liabilities for compensated abserices ate recogmzed in the fund statements to the extent the liabilitiés

have matured (i.e. are due for payment). Cotnpensated absences aré acerued in the orovernmenl—mde
statements.

K. DEFERRED/UNEARNED REVENUE

Property tax revenues a.re recognized when they become both measurable and available in the fiind
statements. Available means when due, or past due, and receivable within the cufferit period or
expected to be collected soon enough théreafter to be used to pay liabilities of the eurrent périod:
Property tax revenues not expected to bé available for the current period are reﬂected as defefred :
révenue. :

Unearned revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied. " Grant and reimbufsement revenues recewed in advance of expenses/expendﬁures are
reflected as utiearned révenue. : :
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CTY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 :

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

L. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities under governmental activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.
On new bond issues, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bond. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and

amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs during the current period. The face amount-of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service

expenditures.

M. FUND EQUITY .

In the fund financial statements governmental funds fepqrt reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties of use for a specific
purpose. Fund reservations include special revenues, capital projects, and debt service.

N. NET ASSETS
Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
.assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of
those assets, and adding back unspent proceeds. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limijtations imposed on their use either threugh the enebling legislation adopted by the City or
~through external restrictions imposed by creditors, granfors, Or laws or regulations of other

governments.

O. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Legally authorized.transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in the results of
operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds. '

P. OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
enterprise. For the City, these revenues are charges for water, and sewer services. Operating
expenses are the mecessary costs incurred to provide the service that is the primary activity.

Revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as nonoperating.
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NOTE I -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (GONT) .

Q.

USE OF ESTIMATES

i CaTy

The preparailon of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accountmg pnnc1ples
requires managemeiit to fdke estimatés and assumptmns thiat affect the reported amotints of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contlncent assets and liabilities at the date ‘of the financial statéments
and the réported amounts 6f revenues and expenses durmg the repomng per1od ‘Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 -- CASH AND CASH INVESTMENTS

The City’s funds dre tequired to be deposited and invested undér thie terms of a depdsitory &6ttract. “The
depos1tory bank deposits for safeleeping dnd trust with the City’s agent bank approved pledge Securities
in an amount sufficiefit to protect City funds ori a day-to-day basis durfiip the period of the doritract. The
pledge of approved seciifities is waived only t6 e extent éfthe- dcposxtory bank*s delleu arndunt of
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC™) insurance.

[

Cash and Cash Equivalents

At September 30, 2008, the carrying amount of the city’s cash on hand was $900 and deposits in
bank were $1,230,149 and thé bank baldnce was $1,261,619. Of thé bank balance, $250,000:was
covered by federal deposit ifisurance arid the Cify’s depository had pledged securities having 4 face
value of §1,530,000 and market value of $1,419,538 as collateral for the Cl’cv s depos1ts All of the
City’s cash was fully collateralized:

. investments '

The Clty i8 reqmred by Govemment Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act to’ ad@pt
implément, and* publi¢ize an itivestitient policy. -That palicy- must address the: following aress:
(1) safety of prificipal and- liguidity, (2) portfolio divetsification, (3) allowable’ investments.
(4) acceptable Fisk levels, (5) expectéd:ites of retiirn,’ (6) maximuni allowable stated maturity. of
portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated
maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, and (9) bid solloltatlon
preferences for certificates of deposit.

The Public Funds Investment Act (“Act”) réquires an annual andit of investment practices. Audit
procedures in this area conducted as a part of'the audit of the basic financial statements disclosed that
in the areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies,
the City adhered to the requirements of the Act. Addttlo‘nally, investment practices of the City-were
in accordance W1th local pohcles

The Act de’cermmes the-types of investments which are allowable for the City. These include, with
certain réstrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S: Treasury, ‘U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas
(2) certificates of deposit; (3) certain municipal securities, (4) securities. lending program,
(5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investment pools,
(9) guaranteed investment contracts, and (10) commercial paper.
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NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH INVESTMENTS (CONT.)

2. Investments (Cont.)
The City’s investments at September 30, 2008 are as shown below:

Reported Value Fair Value
§ 3,053,711 $ 3,052,306
§ 3,053,711 $ 3,052,306

TexPool
Total Investment

During the period, the City did not invest in any investments which were pot held at
September 30, 2008. ‘ ' o

‘ 3. Amnalvsis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks

GASB Statement No. 40 vrequires a determination as to whether the City was exposed to the .
following specific mvestment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

a. Credit Ris}c

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed 1o
give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the City was not significantly exposed to credit

At September 30, 2008, the City’s investments were all in TexPool'a public funds investment
pool where Il securities held maintain a continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAA-m or

an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service.

b.. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by deposifory insurance and
the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institntion or- collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust

department or agent but not in the City’s name.

Investment securities are eXposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are “uninsured, are not
registered in the neme of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the
counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the City’s name. '

At vear end, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

c. Concentration of Credit Risk

The risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single
issuer. At year end, the City was not exposed 1o credit risk.
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NOTE 2 -- CASH AND CASH INVESTMENTS (CONT.) .

3. Analvsis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks (Cont.)

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
At year-end, the City was not exposed to interest rate risk.

e 'F_oreign Cutrency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 1nvestment At year
end, the City was Tiot exposed to fOI‘Cl"fI’l cutrency risk.

4, Investment Accounting Policv

The City’s general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating interest-
eamlng mVestment contracts a’c amorttzed cost and 16 report nonpamclpatmg ifterest-eartiing
investment contracts ii$ing a cost- based measure.”. However, if the fair value of an investment s
significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors. it is
reported at fair value. All other investments are repotted at fair value unless a legal contract exists
which guarantees a higher value. The term “short-term”™ refers to investments which have a
remaihing term of orié year or less at time of purchase. The terr “nonparticipating” means that the
investment’s valiie'does not vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of
deposrc are examplés of nonparticipating interest-earning invéstment contracts.

5. Public Funds Investment Pools

Public funds investmeént podls i Texas (“Povls™) are established undet the authority of the Interlocal
Cooperation Act, Chapter 79 of the Texas Governmént Codé, and re subject to the provisions of the
Public Funds Investment Act (the *Act™), Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. In addition
to other provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and safety of ptincipal; the Asi fequires
Pools to: (1) have an advisory board composed of partxc1pants in the pool and other persons who do
not have a business relatlonslrnp ‘with the pool and ‘dre qualified to advise the pool: (2) maintain a
continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAA:m of an equivalent rating by at least one nationally
recognized rating sérvice; and (3) maintain the market value of its underlylng investment pottfolio
within one half of one percent of the value of its shares. - - ¢

N OTIZ 3 PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR

The City’s property tax is lev1ed and becomes collect1ble each. Oc’cober 1 based Of- the assessed values
listed as of the prior January 1, which is the date a lien attaches to all taxable property in the City.
Assessed values are established by the Comal-Coufity -Appraisal District at 100% of estimated market
value. Assessed values are reduced by lawful exemptions to arrive at taxable values. A revaluation of all
property is required to be completed every four (4) years. The ‘total taxable .value as of
January 1, 2007, upon which the fiscal 2007 levy was based, was $458,896,985 (i.e., market value less
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NOTE 3 — PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR (CONT.)

exemptions). The estimated market value was $479,032,381, making the taxable value 95.32% of the
estimated market value. Property taxes are recorded as receivables and deferred revenues at the time the
taxes are assessed. In governmental funds, revenues are recognized as the related Ad Valorem taxes are
collected. Additional amounts estimated to be collectible in the time to be a resource for payment of
obligations incurred during the fiscal year and therefore susceptible to accrual in accordance with
_ generally accepted accounting principles have been recognized as revenue. In the government-wide
financial statements, the entire levy is recognized as revenue, net of estimated uncollectible amounts (if

any), at the levy date.

The City is permitted by the Constitution of the State of Texas to levy taxes up-to $2.50 per $100 of
taxable assessed valuation for all governmental purposes. Pursuant to a decision of the Attorney General
of the State of Texas, up to $1.50 per $100 of assessed. valuation may be used for the payment of long-
term debt. The combined tax rate to finance general governmental services, including the payment of
principal and interest on long-term debt, for the year ended September 30, 2008, was $.221024 per 3100
of assessed value, which means that the City has a tax margin of $2.278976 for each $100 value and
could increase its annual tax levy by approximately $10,458,152 based upon the present assessed
valuation of $458,896,985 before the limit is reached. However, the City may not adopt a tax rate that
exceeds the tax rate calculated in accordance with the Texas Property Tax Code by more than three

) without holding a public hearing. The Property Tax Code subjects an increase in the

percent (3%
s, when the effective tax rate

effective tax rate to a referendum election, if petitioned by registered voter
increase is more than eight percent (8%) of the previous year’s effective tax rate.

_NOTE 4 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE

During the course of its operations, the City has pumerous transactions between funds to finance
“operations, provide services, construct assets, and service debt. To the extent that certain transactions
" between funds had not been paid or received as of September 30, 2008, balances of interfund amounts

receivable or payable have been recorded as follows:

Due From Due To
Genera] Fund Due From Water Fund 3 6,149  $ -
- 6,149 _-
- 6,149

Water Fund Due To General Fund

3 6,149 § 6,149
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NOTE 5 -- CAPITAL ASSETS

Ceaen o B R T S S
"R HI ot [ g

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2008, was as foliows:

» *Balances At

o Balances At
Ogtober 1, - Additions/ " D1sposaIs/ September 30
'3007 . Transferln Transfer OQut ) 2008
Govemmenta,l Actjvities s ' . ‘
Land . $ ,461,.414 $ -5 o 461,414
Bmldmgs &' Improvements 3,601,682 - 3,601,682
Equipment & Vehicles 297,098 127,389 424,487
Infrastructure 4,795,779 ... . - e 4,795,779 .
S :155.973. 127,389 . . - 9 28.3 .3,.5.ﬂ
Less Accumulatéd Depreciation. L P L
Buildings & Improvements. ' (280, 598) - (104,645) (385,243)
Equipment & Vehicles (25,.0 220) . (40,956). - (291,176)
Infrastructure (1,797,338). . (155255) (1,952:593) .
: (2,328,156) (300,856) (2 6u9 012,
Governmetit Capital Asséts, Net § 6,827,817 $ (173,467) § 3 6, 654 350
Business-type Activities : : - :
Land : $ 148342 3 - $ $ 148,342
Buildings & Improvements 87,748 - 87,748
Water Rights 46,825 - 46,825
Water Lines & Extensions 4,276,790 - 4,276,790
Equipment & Vehicles 201,408 - . 291,408
_ - 4851,113 s 4,851,113
Less Accumulated Depreciation :
Buildings & Improvements (38,059) (3,141) (41,200)
Water Lines & Extensions (1,344,027) (147,348) (1,491,375)
Equipment & Vehicles (193,236) (22,483) (215,719
(1,575,322) (172,972) (1,748.294)
Business-type Capital Assets, Net § 3;275,791 $ (172,972) % '$ 3,102,819

Land and Water Rights are not depreciated
*Prior year opening balances were restated to reflect additional equipment purchased in the previous

year. See Note 13 for details.
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NOTE 5 -- CAPTTAL ASSETS (CONT.)

Depreciation expense was charged to the governmental functions as follows:

Administration $ 123,496
Police Protection 22,103 -
Public Works 155,257
~ Total Depreciation Expense -

Government Activities ' $ 300,856

NOTE 6 -- LONG-TERM DEBT

At Septémber 30, 2008, the City’s long-term debt consisted of the following:

Range of

Interest Unpaid Current Long-Term
Government Activities: : Rates Principal® Maturities Maturities
Capital Leases . 62% $ 61,546 § 19,187 % 42,359
Certificates of Obligation Series 1998 . 4.75%-6.5% 915,000 70,000 845,000
Certificates of Obligations Series 2002~ 3.625%-4.75% 700,000 40,000 660,000
‘Certificates of Obligations Series 2005 - 3.5%-4.5% 1,810,000 55,000 1,755,000
Tax Certificates Series 2005 . 3.67-4.28% . 345,000 110,000 235,000

LT T $ 3,537,359 .

- $3.831,546 5§ 294,187

Changes in the City’s long-term debt duriﬁg the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, follows:

, Balance Current Balance

Original Tnterest Outstanding  (Retirements)  Outstanding
Government Activities: Amount Rates Oct. 1, 2007%* Additions Sept. 30, 2008
Capital Leases 84,580 6.2% 3 - $ 61,546 3 61,546
1998 Series 1,175,000  4.75%-6.5% 980,000 (65,000) 915,000
2002 Series ‘ 900,000 3.625%-4.75% 755;000 (3570065 700-000.
2005 Series 1,925,000 *. 3.5%-4.5% 1,855,000 (45,000) 1,810,000
2005 Tax Certificates 500,000  3.67-4.28% 450,000 (105,000) 345,000

" Accrued Employees Compensated Absences 38,107 7,007 45,114
‘ ‘ $ 4,058,107 $ (181,447) § 3.876,660

* Prior year opening balances were restated to reflect bond cost not included in the previous year.,

See Note 13 for details.
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NOTE 6 -~ LONG-TERM DEBT (CONT.)
A. General Obligation Bonds

These bonds are supported by a pledge of the City's Faith and credit. The related bond ordinances
require a levy and collection of a tax without limitation as to rate or amount on all property subject to
taxation by the City sufficient in amount to pay the principal and interest on such bonds as they shall
become due. The ordinances also require that a sinking fund be created and administered by the City
solely for the purpose of paying principal and interest when due. Spesific sinking fund reserve
requiremnents for the City’s general obligation bonds are being followecl

On March 1, 1998, the City issued $1,175,000 Certificates of Obligatibh Seties 1998 pursuant to
Certificate of Obligation Act of 1971 as amended. The certificates constitute direct and general

obligations of the City payable from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property Within the = -

city and further secured by a lien on and pledge of the net revenue derived from the operation of the
~ water fund. The certificates weie lssued to upgride and dxpatid the Clty’ s water systetn.

On August 15, 2002, the City issued $900,000 Certificates of Obligation Series 2002 pursuant to
Certificate of Obhvamon Act of 197145 amended. The certificates constitute direct and general
obligations of the City payable from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property within the
city and furthef secured by a lieh on and pledge of the surplus revenues derived from the operations-
of the water fund. The certificates were issued to dr1ll a new watet well, and upgrade and expand the "
City’ s water system

On Mar'ch 1, 2005, the City issued $1,925,000 Certificates of Obligations Series 2005 piirsuarnt to the
constitution and generdl laws of the State of Texas; particularly, Subchapter.C of Chapter 271 of the
Texas. Local Govérniment Code, as amended, and an ordinance adopted by the City Council. The
“certificates constitute direct and general obligations of the City payable from ad valorem taxes levied
against all taxable property within the city., The certificates were issued for the purpose of paying
contractual obligations of the City for the construction and equipping of a fiew Municipal Compléx
mcludmg city offices and library on mty-owned property.

On November 2, 2005, the City mSued $550,000 Tax Notes Series 2005 pursuant to the constitution
and general laws of the State of Texas, partictlarfy, Subchapter C of Chapter 271 of the Texas Local

Governmert Code, as amended, and an ordinance adopted by the City Council. The notes constitute '

direct and general obligations of the City payable from ad valorem taxes levied agamst all taxable ..
property within the city. The. certificates were issued for the purpose of paying contractual '.
obhga’mons of the City for construction and equipment of & new Mun101pal Complex. :
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NOTE 6 -- LONG-TERM DEBT (CONT.)

B. Debt Amortization '

Requirements to amortize all long-term debt over the remaining lives are as follows:

Fiscal Year )
Ending September 30 ‘ Principal’ Interest Total
2009 T % 275000 § 161,020 § 436,020
2010 300,000 149,335 . 449335
2011 4 320,000 136,497 456,497
2012 210,000 124,994 334,994
2013 225,000 114,965 339,965
Subsequent 2,440,000 572,067 3,012,067

$_3.770.000 $ 1.258.878 $ 5.028.878

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES

The City has entered into 2 capital lease agreement with Daimler Chrysler Financiel Services for the
purchase of four vehicles. The leases qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes as defined under
the Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 13, Accounting for Leases, and therefore have
*"been recorded at the present value of future minimum Jease payments at the date of inception. Lease
payments are being made from the General Fund. The capital lease agreement is for forty-eight months

_..to be paid onanannualbasis. . N

The vehicles acquired through capital leases are as follows:.

Government

Activities

. Asset: ' _
Four Police Cars ' ' ; 3 84,580
Less: Accumulated Depreciation . (16,916)
Total 3 67.664
- Future minimum lease payments are to be made as follows: — =

Government

Fiscal Year Ending Activities
2009 $ 23,033
2010 - 23,033
2011 23,033
69,099

Total Lease Payments

Less: Amount Representing Interest (7.553)

Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments 3 61,546




CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONT.)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

NOTE 8 -- PENSION PLAN EE T
A. Plan Description R

The City provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a notitraditional. joint
contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS).
one of over 827 administered by TMRS, an agent multxple employer public employee retirement system.
TMRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements ‘and required
supplementary information for TMRS. That teport may be obtained by wntmg to Texas Municipal
Retirement System P.O. Box 149153, Austin TX 78714.

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee’s. contributions to the plan, wuh mtex est, and the City-
financed momnetary credits, with interest. At the date the plan began, the City oranted monetary credits
for service rendered before the plan began ofia, theoretical amount equal to two tzmes, what would have
been contributed by theé emiployee, with fiter€st, priofto sstablishment of the plan Monetary credits for
service since thé plan -began are 4- percent-(F00%, 150%, or 200%) of the employee’s accumulated

contributions, In addition, the City can grant as often as annually another type of monetary credit
referred to as an updated service credit which is a theoretical amount which, witen addéd -to ‘the

employee’s accumulated contribution and the monetary eredits for service since the plan began, would be
the total momnetary credits and employeé contributions accumulated with irterest if the current etnployee

contribution rate and city matching percent had always been in existence and if the empl oyee’s salary had

always been the aveérage of his salaty in the last three years that ate one year before the effective date. At
retirement, 'the behefit is calculated as if the sum of the employse’s accumulated contributions with
interest and thé employer financed: monetary credits with interest were used to pumhase an annulty ‘

I

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the

state statutes governing TRMS and within the actuarial constraints also ini thie statutes.

Deposit Ratelf 5%
Matching Ratio (City to Employee) ltol
A Member is Vested After 5 years

Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 5 or more years of service, or with 25 vears of service
regardless of age. An employee is vested after 5 years. The plan provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the City, within the options available in the staite statutes goverhing TMRS and within
the actuarial constramts also in the statutes.

B. Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the actuary annually determines-the City contribution rate. This
rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service contribution rate, both of which are
calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost cortribution rate finances
the currently accruing monetary credits due to the City matching percent, which are the ob11<rat10n of the
City as of an employeé’s- retirement date, not at the time the effiployee’s contributions are made. The
normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially determined percent of payroll necessary to satisfy the
obligation of the City to each-employee at the time his retirement becomes effectivé. The prior service
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN (CONT.)

B. Contributions (Cont.)

confribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the remainder of the
plan’s 25-year amortization period. The projected unit credit cost method is used for determining the
City contribution rate. Both the employees and the City make contributions momnthly. Since the City
nesds to know its contribution rate in advance to budget for it, there is a ome-year lag between the
actuarial valuation that is the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. (i.e.,
December 31, 2007 valuation is effective for rates beginning January 2009).

A summary of actuarial assumptions is as follows:

Pension SDBF
Actuarial Valuation Date December 31, 2007 December 31, 2007
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit
Amortization Method ' Level Percent of Payroll Level Percent of Payroll
Remaining Amortization Period - 25 years - Closed Period 25 years - Open Period
Asset Valuation Method Amortized Cost Fund value
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% 4.25%
Projected Salary Increases Varies by Age and Service None
~ Inflation Rate 3.00% | 3.00%
~ Cost-of-Living Adjustments 0.00% - None
- City-specific assumptions: o o -
Payroll growth assumption 3.00% N/A
Withdrawal rates for Male/Female Mid-Low/Mid.—Lovv N/A
" Pension . SDBF
Annual Percentage Annual Percentage
Pension of APC Net Pension Pension of APC Net Pension
Fiscal Year Cost Contribution  Obligation Cost Contribution ~ Obligation
2006 22,900 T00% = 5373 100%
2007 23,574 100% - 1,423 100% -
2008 26,958 100% - 1,620 100% .

At its December 8, 2007 meeting, the TMRS Board of Trustees adopted actuarial assumptions to be used
in the actuarial valuation for the year ended December 31; 2007. A summary of actuarial assumptions
and definitions can be found in the December 31, 2007 TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

(CAFR).
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Since its inception, TMRS has used the Unit Credit actuarial funding method. This method accounts for
liability accrued as of the valuation date, but does not pro_]ect the potential future Hability' of provigiens
adopted by a city. Two-thirds of the cities partlclpatmc in TMRS have adopted the Updated Service
Credit and Annuity Increases ] provisions’ on"af annually repeatmg basis. ‘Fot the December 31, 2007
valuation, the TMRS Board determiined that the Projécted Unit Credit (PUCy fundmg method should be
used, which facilitates advance funding for future updated service credifs and annuity iricréases that are
adopted on an annually repeating’ basis. In additict, the Boatd also adopted a change iri thé atfiottization -
period from a 75—year “opén” to 825 year “closed” period; “FTMRS Board' of Trustee rilés prov1de that,
whenever a change in actuarial assumptions ot methods results in a contribution rete increase in an -
amount greater than 0.5%, the amortization period will be increased to 30 years, unless a city requests
that the period remain at 25 years. For cities with repeating féatures; these charigés would licels: resuli -
initially in higher required contributions and lower funded ratios; however, the funded ratio should show
steady improvemett gver time. To assist in this, trahsition to hlgher rates, the Board also approved an
eight-year phase-in .perio hich will allow’ cmes the’ opportumty to increageytheir ;contributions
gradually (approx 12.5% each year) to their full rate (or their required contribution rate)

if changes in actuaﬂal fundmg, method and assumptaons had not been adopted for the 2007 valuation, the -
city’s unfunded actuarial accrued Hability would have been $32.808 and the funded 1at10 would haVe
been 94%. 4
In addition. TMRS is curreiitly working on its legislative package for 2009. There is a possibility that the
investment rate of return (IRR). assumption of 7% would need to be lowered if desired legislation. for the
2009 session is unsuccessful. Maintaining a 7% IRR assumption is contingent in part on the continued |
diversification of the TMRS portfolio, from an almost exclusive bond portfolio to a portfolio that
includes equities as well. If state legislation needed to facilitate the continued diversification is fiot
enacted, TMRS may have to revisit the continued diversification of the portfolio and consider reducing
the assumed TRR. A reduction in the IRR would résult in increased aetiiatial accriled liabilities thus -
causing further increases in city contribution rates, following the December 31, 2009 actuarial valuation.

C. Other Post-Employment Benefits

The City also contributes to the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF), a cost-sharing multiple-
emp loyer defined benefit postemployment healthcaie plan administered by TMRS. SDBF provides life
insurance- to active and retired ertiployges of partlc;lpatmg mun101paht1es SDBF is a separate trust
administered by the TMRS Board of Trustees. TMRS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial stafements and required supplementary information for SDBF. That report may be
obtained by writing' to Texas Municipal Retirement System, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, Téxas
78714-9153.
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C. Other Post-Employment Benefits (Cont.)

Participating municipalities are contactually required to contribute at a rate assessed each year by TMRS
based upon: annual covered payroll. The TMRS Board of Trustees sets the employer contribution rate

based on the annual required contribution of the employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in

accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabiliies (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years.

Additional supplementary three-year trend information may be found on page 48.

NOTE 9 -- OPERATING TRANSFERS

Operating transfers during the year ended September 30, 2008 were as follows:

TrensfersIn~ Transfers Out

Debt Service Fund " $ 150179 3 -

Water Fund - 159,179
‘ $ 159,179 § 159,179

' NOTE 10 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES |
Ligation
No reéortable litigation was pending against the City.
NOTE 11 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Ci_’cy of Garden Ridge, Texas, is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and pataral disasters. To cover

this risk the City contracts with the Texas Municipal League (TML) to provide insurance coverage for
— Degmesh Jty- and—Worker’s-Compensation . TMT,_is_a multi-employer. group that provides for a

— DrssertviCasualty—and—W ,
combination of modified self-insurance and stop-loss coverage. Contributions are s€t annually by TML.
Liability by the City is generally limited to the contributed amounts. Annual contributions for the year

ended September 30, 2008, were $57,696.

NOTE 12 — SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In November 2008, the City contracted with Wagner Materials & Construction to complete the
reconstruction of the municipal parkway. As of December 2008, the contracted amount for the project
was $148,563. It is expected that the project will be completed by January 2009.

In January 2009, the Council approved the bid from Hansco, Inc. for $12.000 to complete the demolition
of the old City Hall building. ' .
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

NOTE 13 -~ PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The financial statements for the fiscal period ending September 30, 2007 did not reflect the addition of
equipment. Also, the capital lease payment from the current_ year was expensed in the prior year. Lastly.
the bond- payable was previously expensed for an amount not actually paid, therefore the debt was
understated. The beginning net assets of the goveinmental activities and the business-type activities
(Proprietary Fund) have been restated to reflect the cumulative baldnce as follows: . )

Governmental

General
_ Pund

Bus,ines_s,—_'gypc :
. Activities

_(Proprietary Eund)

$ 1375220

23,034

$ 4,546,347

65,340

: o . . - Activities

Beginning Net Assets ' § 4,639,781
Adjustment to Correct Overstatement of , ) o

Expense in the Prior Year ' 3,034

Adjustment to Reflect Prior Year Addition of Equipment -

Beginning Net Assets, as Restated $ 4639781

Y 1375220

§0 1 4611682
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosurés that are required by
+he GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such information includes:

« Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund

o Schedule of Funding Progress — Defined Benefit

42



. CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE
. REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Variance
~,Budget Amounts, . Actunal Favorable
Original Final Amounts (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
Taxes:. : e e . »
Ad Valorem § 705411 - § 70_5,411 $ 695,032 . § (10,379)
Mixed Beverage 350 350 335 (1)
Sales 270,000 270,000 187,715 (82.285)
Total Taxes 975761 . -~ 975761 =  '883,082 - . (92i679)
Franchise Fees: CEL s R AL
Cable 40.000 40,000 65,330 25,330
Electric - 150,000 150,000 137,573 (12,427)
Gas 9.200 11,425 11,425 -
Telephone 20.000 20.000 19.912 (881
Water 48.552 48.552 51,548 2.996
Total Franchise Fees 267,752 269,977 285,788 15.811
Licenses and Permits: v
Building & Electrical 301,000 328,000 353,815 25815
Other 3,900 4,130 3,395 (753)
Total Licenses and Permils 304,900 332,150 357,210 25.060
Charges for Services:
Rental Fees 54.300 57,180 36,070 (21.110)
Planning & Variance 25,000 25,000 16,987 (8,013)
Recycling 4,000 4,000 5,622 1,622
Garbage Collection 50,000 50,000 27,877 (22,123)
Pet Registration 2,800 2,800 2,325 (475)
Total Charges for Services 136,100 138,980 . 88,881 (50,099)
Fines and Forfeitures. . '
Court Fines 50,150 58,950 70,204 11,254
Warrant Fees & Fines 3.500 3,500 2,298 (1,202)
Total Fines and Forfeitures $ 53,650 § 62450 § 72,502 $  10.052
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE

- REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Variance
Budget Amounts Actual Favorable
Original Final Amounts  (Unfavorable)

REVENUES (CONT.})

Other Sources: _ : :
Interest $ 10,000 § - 20,000 24,515 3 4,515
Contributions 8,950 - 13,450 12,712 (738)
Street Impact Fees . - - 15,390 15,390

. Miscellanéous 69,044 70,790 51,247 (19,543)
Total Other Sources 87,994 104,240 103,864 (376)
TOTAL REVENUES 1,826,157 1,883,558 1,791,327 (92,231) |
EXPENDITURES
General Government:
Personnel ‘ 210,393 175,816 148,977 26,839
Contract Fees 190,371 209,669 235,482 (25,813)
Administrative 94,875 94,775 90,688 4,087
Insurance 22,673 25,383 11,764 13,619
Other 11,308 - 14,608 32,559 (17,951
Capital Outlay 6,500 ~ - 26,380 - 4,765 - 21,615
Total General Government 536,120 546,631 524,235 22,396

Municipal Court: . _
Personnel 31,742 31,773 33,005 (1,232)
Contract Fees 4,800 4,800 - 4,800 -
Other 8.617 8,732 1,928 6,804

Total Municipal Court 45,159 45,305 39,733 5,572

Public Safety:

Personnel 712,536 701,820 698,683 ENEY
Contract Fees 50,285 29,140 50,668 (21,528)
Operations & Maintenance 68,714 77,096 84,684 (7,588)
Other 36,471 36,065 27,202 8,863
Capital Lease Payment - - 23,034 (23,034)
Capital Outlay 101,580 101,580 107,599 (6,019)

Total Public Safety § 969,586 § 945,701 991,870 3 (46,169)
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
GENERAL FUND
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Variance
Budget Amounts Actual Favorable
' Original ~  Final Amounts (Unfavorable)
EXPENDITURES (CONT.) ‘ 2
Public Facilities: A R Sk
Personnel $ 85048 % 83,792 § 64,253~ $ 19,539
Contract Fees 2,700 2,700 2,252 448
' Operatlons & Mamtenance 71,629 88,740 81,816 6,924
Other o - - R T
' Library “ 46,817 % 53,817 41,140 - - (2,677
'Cotmmunity Center’ .22,882 % i 22,767 20,921 o |.846
Capital Outlay ) 88,000 85.000 45,383 39,617
Total Public Facilitibs T317,076 . 336.816 255,765 81,051
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1.867.941 1.874.453 1,811,603 * 62,850
Excess (Deficiency) Over
(Under) Expenditiiies (41.784) 9,105 (20,276) 29,381
OTHER SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from Capital Lease 84,580 84,580 84,580 -
TOTAL OTHER SOURCES _
(USES) " 84,580 84580 84,580 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
& Other Sourées Over (Under) .
Expenditures & Other Uses 42,796 93.685 64,304 29,38
Fund Balance - Octobet 1 o 1,375,220 1,375.220 1,375,220 ) -
Prior Period Adjustment - - 23,034 (23,034)
Fund Balance - September 30 51,418,016 $ 1,468,905 § 1,462,558 - 6,347
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL '
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Budgetary Information — The budget is prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America. The City maintains strict budgetary controls. The objective of
these controls is 1o ensure compliance with lega] provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget
approved by the City Council and as such is a good management control device. The following are the

funds which have legally adopted annual budgets: Generzal Fund and Debt Service Fund.

Budgetary preparation and control is exercised at the department level. ‘Actual expenditures may not

legally exceed appropriations at the fund level.

Fncumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, comtracts and other commitments for the

expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is utilized in
es or liabilities

the governmental funds. Encumbrances lapse at year-end and do not constitute expenditur
because the commitments must be reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS

UNFUNDED

i ACTUARIAL

ACCRUED

LIABILITY
: : UNFUNDED . AS A

ACTUARIAL =~ AGTUARIAL. FUNDING  ACTUARIAL. : ANNUAL . PERCENTAGE

FISCAL VALUE OF ACCRUED RATIO ACCRUED COVERED  OF COVERED

YEAR ASSETS **  :LIABILITY*. .  (D)/2), -, LIABILITY .. . PAYROLL =~ _ PAYROLL
2005 $ 354,629 $ 375447 945% § 20818 § 752,988 2.8%
2006 - . § 436,445 5 461,506 94.6% $ 25061 $ 792,108 3.2%
2007 8 .517841 5 562,687 .. 920% 5 44846 . $ 883560 | 5.1%

* As of December 31 of the precedmg year the date of the actuanal valuatlon o ;

** Assers are stated at cost as of December 31 of the precedmg year
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OTHER SUPPLEI\[ENTA_RY INFORMATION
Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the GASB,
nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.
* Such statements and schedule include:
e Comparative Statements — General Fund
. Comparaﬁve Statements — Debt Service

. Comparati%/e Statements — Capital Projects
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GENERAL FUND
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ASSETS

Cash and Investments
Taxes Receivable (Net of

CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007 -

Uncollectible which is $3,832 and 35, 676 )

Other Receivables

Due from Other Funds

Prepaid Expenses
TOTAL ASSETS -

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:-

Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

Deposits

Deferred Revenue
Deferred Revenue Training
Total Lz‘abz‘lirz’é.s

Fund Balanee:

_Reserve for Prepaid Expenses

Reserve for Donations

Unreserved

T qtaZ Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

- * Restated for prior period adjustment. See Note 13 for details.

2008 #2007

$ 1,507,039 $ 986,062
3252 3,859
82,711 43,348
6,149 452467

1,505 2,094

$ 1,600,656 § 1,487,830
$ 105279 § 50,213
24,806 28,704
4,761 4361
3,252 3,859

- 2,439

138,098 89.576
1,505 2,094
6,263 28,557
1,454,790 1,367,603
1,462,558 1,398,254
$ 1,600,656 $ 1,487,830

50



CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
| GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

2008 #2007
REVENUES
Taxes:
Ad Valorem , $§ 695032 § 582,247
Mixed Beverage " 335 o309
Sales - v ’ 187,715 216,535
Total Taxes 883,082 799,091
Franchise Fees: : s
Cable ' 65,330 40,518
Electric : e 137,873 0 {12348
Gas _ 11,425 8,520
Telephone R 19,912 . 14,798
Water 51,548 .- 43513
Total Franchise Fees' - 285,788 234,467
Licenses and Permits: | . .
Building & Electrical 353,815 T 324,002
Other 3,395 4,122
Total Licenses and Permits 357,210 - 328,324
Charges for Services: _ . , -
Rental Fees . . A 36,070 31,595
Plarming: & Variance """~ 16,987 . 6,236
Recycling 5,622 3,701
Garbage Collection -~ - S e 27,877 L 15,732
Pet Registration : 2,325 3,101
Total Charges for Services . . .. 88,881 . 60,365
Fines and Forfeitures: -
Court Fines 70,204 52,854
Warrant Fees & Fines 2,298 16,144
Total Fines & Forfeitures $ 72,502 $ 68,998

* Restated. for prior period adjustment. See Note 13 for details.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

2008 *2007

REVENUES (CONT.)

Orher Sources:
$ 24,5158 $ 9,753

Interest
Contributions 12,712 29,719
Street Impact Fees 15,390 54,392
Miscellaneous 51,247 . 38315
Total Other Sources 103,864 132,179
TOTAL REVENUES 1,791,327 1,623,424
EXPENDITURES
General Government: B
Personnel . ' ' 148,977 143,022
Contract Fees ' ' 235,482 172,504
Administrative 90,688 77,882
Insurance 11,764 1,450
Other : : 32,559 ' 26,172 .
~ Capital Outlays 1 ’ 4,765 16,423
Total General Government 524,235 437,453
Mumicipal Court: _
Personnel 33,005 31,225
. Contract Fees 4,800 6,585
Other 1,928 4,128
Total Municipal Court 39,733 41,938
Public Safety: : -
Personnel 698,683 , 627,609
Contract Fees 507668 23436
Operations & Maintenance 84,684 75,543
Other 27,202 22,319
C apital Lease Payment 23,034 oo
Capital Outlay 107,599 -
$ 991,870 $ 748,907

Total Public Safety

* Restated for prior period adjustment. See Note 13 for details.
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

EXPENDITURES (CONT.)
Public Facilities:
Personnel
Contract, Fees :
Operations & Maintenance
Other o
Library
Comrmunity Center
Capital Outlay
Total Public Facilities

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from Capital Leasé

Operating Transfers In (Out)
TOT AL OTHER SOURCES
(USES)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
& Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures & Other Uses

Fund Balance - October 1
Fund Balance - September 30

© * Restated for ptior period adjustment. See Note 13 for details.

2008 2007
$ 64283  § 63474
2,252 2,458
81,816 59,577
41,140 20,749
20,921 6,855
45,383 31,171
255,765 T 183,784
1,811,603 1,412,082
(20.276) 211,342
84,580 -
- 836.658 :
84,580 836,658
64,304 1,048,000
1,398,254 350,254

§ 1,462,558

§ 1,398,254




DEBT SERVICE FUND
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE

DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007
2008 2007

ASSETS B o
Cash : $ 92,198 § 192,854
Taxes Receivable (Net of Uncollectible which is $0) : 1,546 2,101

"TOTAL ASSETS ' $ 93,744 § 194,955

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities: ‘ . -
Deferred Revenues - 3 1,546 b 2,101
Due to Other Funds o 3 - 171,450
Total Liabilities . . : 1,546 173,551
Fund Balance g 92,198 21,404
93,744 . § 194,955

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 5
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
~ DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED-SEPTEMBER 30, 2008
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR 2007)

. 2008 2007

REVENUES

Ad Valorem Tax o : 8 3306561 .$§ 317,115

Interest ) 3,973, - ..5,84]
TOTAL REVENUES 334,534 322,956

EXPENDITURES

Bond Principal Co 145,769 - 225,000

Bond Interest N , 276,535 .. ,181,000

Agent Fees . 615 . .. ... 1684
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ' 422,919 407,684
Excess' (Deﬁc}:iency);df Revemi‘es : _ S oL T on
Over (Under) Expenditures (88,385) (84.728)

OTHER SCOURCES (USES) :

Operating Transfer [n 159,179 -
TOTAL OTHER SOURCES A 159,179 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Sources Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Uses 70,794 (84.728)

Fund Balance - October 1 21,404 106,132

Fund Balance - September 30 § 92,198 § 21404
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

2008 2007
ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ 192,589 $ 298,051
Restricted Cash 153,517 151,190
TOTAL ASSETS § 346,106 § 449241
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Due to Other Funds $ ~ by 98.267
Total Liabilities ' - 98.267
Fund Balance: ,
Reserved for Street Iimpact Fees ' 153,517 151,190
Unreserved/Undesignated 192,589 199,784
Total Fund Balance , 346,106 350974
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ 346,106 § 44924}
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CITY OF GARDEN RIDGE, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR 2007)

REVENUES
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Municipal Complex Project

Miscellaneous Expenses
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfer In Water Fund
TOTAL OTHER SOURCES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues '

and Other Sources Over (Under) o

" Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balance - October 1
Fund Balance - September'l’a()

2008 2007

§ 13,628 § 73,886
13,628 73,886
14,188 © 920,899
4,308 , -
18,496 . 920,899
(4,868) (847,013)

- (837,684)

- (837,684)

- (4,868) - (1,684,697
330,974 2,035,671

$ . 346,106 $ 350,974
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Administrative Reviewer Date: May 26, 2009

To: '
From: Cartographer-Utilities & Districts Section
Subject: Overlap & Notice Check for Administrative Review No. A~59-9 /36408-C
13.248 City of Garden Ridge/City of Selma
1. No new overlap of service areas exists.
2. Anoverlap:
3. Dual certification:
4. -An overlap exists with the city limits of:
5. Ifthisis a Sale, Transfer, or Merger, is additional area being requested?
7. Map submitted is digital request digital data.
9. Utility notice was sufficient.
10. Utility notice was insufficient. In addition to those systems listed in the application,
' they will also need to notify:
TWO MILES:
X 11, Notice: DONOT NOTICE
X 12. Other comments: Maps do not meet requirements. Please submit original and
copies of the following. (metes and bounds not certified by survevor. need map
showing how multiple tracts go together. Jocation map does not have enough
detail to accurately Jocate area) :
A. A general location map delineating the proposed service area with enough detail
10 accurately locate the proposed area within the county.
B. A map showing only the proposed area by:

(1) Metes and bounds survey certified by a licensed state or
. register professional land surveyor ; or
(2) Projectable digital data with metadata (proposed areas
should be in a single record and clearly labeled for each
utility) ; or R
(3) Following verifiable natural and man-made landmarks, or
(4)-  Copy of recorded plat map with metes and bounds

—

Kent Steelman
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Buddy Garcia, Chairman

Larry R. Soward, Comrnissioner

Bryan W. Shaw, Ph.D,, Commiissioner
Mark R. Vickery, P.G., Executive Director

TExAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution

May 28, 2009

BY FAX TO 210/651-6485 AND
' BY CERTIFIED MATL

0igz

Mr. Larry Rheinlaender
. 8950 Garden Ridge Drive ‘ : S S o
San Antonio, Texas 78266 ' -

21N

=

Section 13.248, from thE City=afs
No. 11253, to Transfersg Porfign

H
Pt

~.

NOTICE OF DEFICIENCY

Contract Service Agreement Pursuant to Texas Water Code,

Garden Ridge, Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN)

Re:
of CCN No. 11522 from the City of Selma, in Guadalupe County; Application No. 36408=C

CN: 600704720; RN: 101391217 (transferee/City of Garden Ridge)
.CN: 600665160; RN: 101388817 (transferor/City of Selma)

‘Dear Mr. Rheinlaender: ,

Your clontract service agreement for the City of Garden Ridge, received on May 21, 2009, has been
assigned Application No. 36408-C, but has not been accepted for filing. Please refer to the application
number in future correspondence.

" Processing for the above referenced application cannot proceed until we receive the following

. information:

1. It appears the maps submitted do not meet the mapping requirements. The metes and
Lounds are not certified by a survevor, A map should be submitted to show how multiple

tracts go together and the location mep does not have enough detail to accurately locate the
proposed service area. Please submit the following maps.

A. General location map delineating the proposed service area with enough detail to
accurately locate the proposed service area within the county. ,

'B. Map showing only the proposed service area by:
' metes and bounds survey certified by a licensed state land surveyor or a

(1
registered professional land surveyor; or

(2)  projectable digital data with metadata (proposed areas should be in a single
record and clearly labeled for each utility), or

3) following verifiable natural and man-made landmarks; or

4 copies of recorded plat map with metes and bounds.

DA RAv 12087  ®  Luctin Texas 78711-3087  © 512-239-1000 ¢ Internet address: www.tceq.state.tx.us



M, Larry Rheinlaender

Page 2
May 28, 2009
v 2 The application filing fee for the referenced application is $150 00. Please submit the
) $100.00 application filing fee. The payment should be mailed to TCEQ, Revenue Section,
(MC 214), P.O. Box 13088 Austin, Tekas 78711:3088, Please send a copy of the check
to our office.
a\\S. Please submit a list of the customers affected by this transfer agreement.

These items must be completed and returned to our office by June 29, 2009.- If we do not receive the
requested information by this date, your application will be returned for fatlure to prosecute . oo

If you have any questions, please contact me at 512/239-6932, or if by conespondence molude Maﬂ Code
153 in the letterhead address. , .

Sincerely,

D= L

Katen Blasohke

Utilities & Distriéts Secuon g

Water Shipply Division = :
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

KILB/as

cc! The Honorable Jay F. Feibelman, Mayor of Garden Ridge
The Honorable Jim Parma, Mayor of Selma



June 8,2010 A007cc = oo

Ms. Karen Blaske
TCEQ -

P. O. Box 13087
Austin, Texas 78711

Dear Ms. Blaske:
I hope this finds you domg fine and everything going well for youY

Enclosed, please find my resubmitted package of the required
information to change the water jurisdiction from the City of Selma to.

the City of Garden Ridge. All of the first information I sent to you is
enclosed. ' :
1 think everything else has already been reviewed and approved by you
except the “exact location map” that I discussed with Mr. Kent
Steelman. Mr. Steelman also spoke with Mr. Jerry Wilkie of Wilkie
‘Surveying and told Mr. Wilkie this information was the only thing that
he lacked for my approval.

Those coordinates he requested are as follows:
North 13772332.7405 ' ~ |
- East 2186843.8382

Longitude 98 Degrees 18’46”W

- Latitude 29 Degrees 36’ 59.3” N
Please pass this information on to Mr. Steelman

I am also enclosing another check for $100.00 for processing my
request, as the previous one I enclosed must have been lost.
Thank you for giving this paperwork your immediate attention and

0 Hd 91 NN Bz

—————providing me-with-yeur-writtenapproval.

I really appreciate all you have done to help me get this complete.
Warmest Regards,

arry hemlaender
895¢'Garden Ridge Drive
San Antonio, Texas 78266
210-651-6485 Office and Fax
Lr@sats.rr.com email address
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To:
From:

Subject:

Administrative Reviewer Date: June 23, 2010

Cartographer-Utilities & Districts Section

Overlap & Notice Check for Administrative Review No. P-003-10/367 44-Q

13.248 City of Garden Ridge/City of Selma

1. No new overlap of service areas exists.

2.

(V8]

PRI

10.

A

to
- B.

(11

_ Other comments: Maps do not meet requirements. Please submit original and

An overlap:
Dual certification:
An overlap exists with the city limits of:

If this is a Sale, Transfer, or Merger, is additional area being requested?
Map submitted isldigital request digi'tal data.

Utility notice was sufficient.

Utility notice was insufficient. In addition to those systems listed in the application,
they will also need to notify:

- TWO MILES:

Notice: DO NOT NOTICE

copies of the following. (no map showing the proposed area, coordinates were
not what I requested to locate, we do not work from coordinates)
A general location map delineating the proposed serviee area with enough detaﬂ
accurately locate the proposed area within the county.

A map showing only the proposed area by:
€)) Metes and bounds survey certified by a licensed state or

reglster professmnal land surveyor ; or

tacaed

(2y—Projectabledigital date-with-m
should be in a single record and clearly labeled for each

utility) ; or
(3)  Following verifiable natural and man-made landmarks; or

(4)  Copy of recorded plat map with metes and bounds

Kent Steelman
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August 1,2010

Mr. Kent Steelman
TCEQ.

P. O. Box 13087
Austin, Texas 78711

Dear Mr. Steelman: , .
Enclosed, please find the disc and sheet printed out that you discussed

with my survey in reference to my water jurisdiction change request
that you have in your possession {was actually sent to Karen Blaske}.

I understand that this is all the you require and would appreciate you
giving your approval to Ms. Blaske so that we can get this finalized.

Thank you in advance for all of your help.

Warmest Regards,

f

- MLaryy Rbeinlaender — - - -
8950 Garden Ridge Drive

San Antonio, Texas 78266
210.651.6485 Office
Lr@satx.rr.com email address
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Administrative Reviewer Date: August 12,2010
Cartographer-Utilities & Districts Section

Overlap & Notice Check for Administrative Review No. P-003-10/36744

13.248 City of Garden Ridge/City of Selma

To:
"From:
Subject:
1.
2
3
. 4.
5
7.
9.
10.
11,
X .12

No new overlap of service areas exists.
An overlap:

Dual certification:

An overlap exists with the city limits of:

If this is a Sale, Transfer, or Merger, is additional area being requested?
Map submitted is digital‘ request digital data.

Utility notice was sufficient.

Utility notice was insufficient. In addition to those systems listed in the application,
they will also need to notify:

TWO MILES:

Notice: S ,

Other comments: The area is in the City of Selmas CCN.

onlv contact appears o be the landowner shouldn’t we get both cities consent’
before agenda.

“ KentSteelman







Bryan W. Shaw, Ph.D., Chdirman
Buddy Garcia, Commissioner

Carlos Rubinstein, Commissioner

Mark R. Vickery, P.G., Executive Direcior

Texas COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QuaLITY
Protecting Texas by Reducz‘ng and Preventing Pollution

Angust 18,2010

Mr. Larry Rheinlae:rider
8950 Garden Ridge Drive
San Antonio, Texas 78266

Contract Service Agreement Pursuant to Tekas ‘Water Code, Section 13.248, from the City.of
Garden Ridge, Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) No. 11253, to Transfer a
- Portion of CCN No. 11522 from the City of Selma in Guadalupe County; Application No.

36744-C

Re:

CN: 600704720, 'RN: 101391217 (transferee/City of Garden Ridge)
CN: 600665160; RN: 101388817, (transferor/City of Selma)

Dear Mr. Rheinlaender:

Your contract service agreement application for the City of Garden Ridge to transfer a portion of the

City of Selma’s CCN, was received on June 16, 2010, and has been accepted for filing. Thank you

~for providing the items we requested with your August 1, 2010, letter. Mr. Kamal Adhikari has been

assigned to perform the technical review.

Additional financial or technical information may be requested throngh future correspondence from

the assigned staff.

If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Adhikari at 512/239-0680, or if by correspondence,
~ include Mail Code 153 in the letterhead address. ' .

Sincerely

. Tammy Benter, Manager

Utilities & Districts Section
Water Supply Division

TB/KA/In

The Honorable Jay F. Feibelman, Mayor of Garden Ridge
The Honorable Jim Parma, Mayor of Selma

cc:

P.0.Box 13087 Austin, Texas 78711-3087 512-239-1000 Internet address: www.tceg.state.tx.us -
nier 12906 covebased inl :

ot o sererled e s






Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

To: ‘ Environmental Law Division Date: August 30, 2010
Thru: Kamal Adhikari/Lisa Fuentes
From: Debi Loockermdn CPA

Subject: Contract Service Agreement Pursuant to Texas Water Code Section
- 13.248, from the City of Garden Ridge, Cerfificate of Convenience and
Necessity (CCN) No. 11253, to Transfer a Portion of CCN No. 11522 from

City of Selma in Guadalupe County; Application No. 36744-C '

CN: 600704720; RN: 101391217 (fransferee/City of Garden Ridge)
CN: 600665160;RN: 101388817 (transferor/City of Selma)

In my opinion, the City of Garden Ridge' (Garden Ridge) CCN No. 11253, has
demonstrated adequate financial, managerial and fechnical capability to provide
_service 1o the area contracted for release and fransfer.

Signed; ;i’l@gtc\jﬁ&@/’ww&m @/7[" Date:_August 28, 2010

Background : .
Garden Ridge and City of Selma (Selma) entered an agreement as of November

20, 2008 to fransfer a total of 7.14 acres from Selma’s CCN to Garden Ridge's CCN.
Because Selma is simply releasing the CCN area to Garden Ridge for provision of
water service, no compensation or payment is mentioned.

Garden Ridge provides service to more than 1,300 connections according to the
TCEQ Water Utllities Database (WUD). Garden Ridge's watetr system is ranked

sunerior Selma Ihrn\/ihhac service to_more than 1.300 connectionsThe amount of

area being fransferred is less than 10% of either of the affected CCN areas.

I have reviewed an unqualified auditor's opinion and attached financial

statements for Garden Ridge for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. The
balance sheet for the water system showed total assets of $5,454,672, no long-term
debt, and net assets (equity) of $5,091,098, for a ratio of debt to equity 0f 0.0:1. The
city as a whole has a debt to net asset (equity) ratio of $4,032,400 to $8,827,000, or

0.4¢6:1.

(continued)



The City of Garden Ridge and City of Selma
Financial and Managerial Capability Analysis of Contract Service Agreement

Page 2

The statement of revenues and expenses for the water ufility showed a net
operating income before fransfers of $580,358 after covering depreciation expense
of $172,972 and no interest expense. The ufility operations fund has no deb’r

therefore there is no debt service or debt service coverage. walln

ThlS information supports a finding of Gdequon‘e financial and mcmagerloi capability
fo provide service fo the area contracted for fransfer. .
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Bryan W. Shaw, Ph.D., Chairman

Buddy Garcia, Commissioner

Carlos Rubinstein, Commissioner

Mark R. Vickery, P.G, Executive Director

Texas CoMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution
January 14, 2011,

'CERTIFIED MAIL

Honorable Jay F. Feibelman, Mayor
City of Garden Ridge

9400 Municipal Parkway

Garden Ridge, Texas 78266

Re: Contract Service Agreement Pursuant to Texas Water Code, Section 13.248,
~ from the City of Garden Ridge, Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
(CCN) No. 11253, to Transfer a Portion of CCN No. 11522 from the City of

Selma in Comal County; Application No. 36744-C

CN: 600704720: RN: 101391217 (City of Garden Ridge)
CN: 600665160; RN: 101388817 (City of Selma)

Honorable Mayor Feibelman:

Enclosed is the map and certificate for the above referenced appii.catioh. Please
..review the map-to determine if it correctly represents the actions in the City of -
Garden Ridge and the City of Seima’s pending matters. .

~If you agree that the map is accurate, please sign the CONSENT FORM, mark the_
line that says you concur and return the signed statement. We recommend
keeping a copy of the letter you signed along with the documents listed above for

your records.

If you believe that the map is inaccurate or you disagree that it correctly represents
the City of Garden Ridge and the City of Selma’s intentions in the matter referenced
above, please mark the line on the CONSENT FORM that says you do not concur,
sign the form and return it to the address or fax number on the form. '

If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Kamal Adhikari by phone at 512/239-

0680, by fax at 512/239-6972, by email at Kamal.adhikar@tceq.state.gov, or ity
correspondence, include MC-159 in the letterhead address.

Sincerely,

SV v@mﬁ/
Tammy Benter, Manager '
Utilities & Districts Section
Water Supply Division
TB/KA/db

Enclosures (map, certificate & consent form)

P.O. Box 13087 Austin, Texas 78711-3087 512-239-1000 Internet address: www.tceq.state.&x.us

printed on recyeled paper using soy-based ink




Texas Commussmn On
Environmental Quallty

By These Presents Be It Known To All That

W

Clty of Garden Rldge

having duly applied for certiﬁcat‘lon to p‘réwde w\ater utility service for the
convenience and necessity of the public, and it having been determined by
this commission that the public convenience and necessity would in fact be
advanced by the provision of such service by this Applicant, |s entltled to
and is hereby granted this ’

Certificate of Convenience and NécesSity No. 11253

to provide continuous and adequate water utility service to that service area
or those service areas in Comal County as by final Order or Orders duly
entered by this Commission, which Order or Orders resulting from
Application No. 36744-C are on file at the Commission offices in Austin,
Texas; and are matters of official record available for public inspection; and
be it known further that these presents do evidence the authority and the
duty of the City of Garden Ridge to provide such utility service in acecordance
with the laws of this State and Rules of this Commission, subject only to any
power and responsibility of this Commission to revoke or amend this
Certificate in whole or in part upon a subsequent showing that the public
~ convenience and necessity would be better served thereby.

Issued at Austin, Texas, this

For the Commission




City of Garden Ridge / City of Selma
Portion of Water Service Areas :
Application No. 36744-C (13.248 Contract Service Agreement
from City of Garden Ridge, CCN No. 11253
to Transfer a Portion of City of Seima, CCN No. 11522 in Comal County)
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CONSENT FORM '

Applicant’s Name: Clty of Garden Rldge T
Application Nos.: 36744-C . i o s

= I concui with the recommendatlon con’calned m the staff memorandum
transmitted by letter dated o

W Ido not concur with and mtend to respond to the recommendatlon contamed
in the staff memorandum transmitted by letter dated . . I understand
that I have 14 days from the date of this letter to provide my response.

I am authorized by the City of Garden Rlldge to sign thls form.

Sig’natu re:

Prlnted Name

Relatlonshlp to Appllcant

Date S|gned.

Mail or Fax to:

Kamal Adhikari, E.I.T. ,

Plan and Groundwater Review Section MC 159
: Water Supply Division -
Texas Commtssnon on Envnronmental Qualxty

- P.O, Box 13087 * .

Austm, TX 78711- -3087

Fax: (512) 239-6972
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Bryan W. Shaw, Ph.D., Chairman

Buddy Garcia, Commissioner

Carlos Rubinstein, Commissioner

Mark R. Vickery; P.G, Executive Director

Texas COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution
January 14, 2011

CERTIFIED MAIL

Honorable Tom Daly, Mayor
City of Selma :
9375 Corporate Drive
Selma, Texas 78154

Re: Contract Service Agreement Pursuant to Texas Water Code, Section 13.248,
from the City of Garden Ridge, Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
(CCN) No. 11253, to Transfer a Portion of CCN No. 11522 from the City of

- Selma in Comal County; Application No, 36744-C '

CN: 600704720; RN: 101391217 (City of Garden Ridge)
CN: 600665160; RN: 101388817 (City of Selma)

Honorable Mayor Daly:

Enclosed is the map and certificate for the above referenced application. Please
review the map to determine if it correctly represents the actions in the City of
Garden Ridge and the City of Selma’s pending matters.

If you agree that the map is accurate, please sign the CONSENT FORM, mark the
line that says you concur and return the signed statement. We recommend
keeping a copy of the letter you signed along with the documents listed above for

your records.

If you believe that the map is inaccurate or you disagree that it correctly represents
the City of Garden Ridge and the City of Selma’s intentions in the matter referenced
above, please mark the line on the CONSENT FORM that says you do not concur,
sign the form and return it to the address or fax number on the form.

If you have any questxons, please contact Mr Kamal Adhlkarl by phone at 512/239-

correspondence, include MC 159 in the }etterhead address

Sincerely,

Tammy Benter, Manager
Utilities & Districts Section
Water Supply Division
TB/KA/db

Enclosures (map, certificate & consent form)

P.0. Box 13087 Austm ’I‘exas 78711-3087 . 512-239-1000 Internet address: www.tceq.state.tx.us

mmlndux recvaled paper using sor-hascd ink
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Texas Commission On
Environmental Quality
By These Presents Be It Known To All That.

Clty of Selma R

having duly applied for certlﬂcauon to provide’ water utlllty service for the
convenience and necessity: of the public, and it having been determined by
this commission that the public convenience and necessity would in fact be
advanced by the provision of such service by this Applicant, is entitled to.
and is hereby granted this o

Certificate of Convenience and'Necessity No. 11522 )

to provide continuous and adequate water utility service to that service area ‘
or thosé service areas in Bexar, Comal and Guadalupe Counties as by final -
Order or Orders duly entered by this Commission, which Order or Orders
resulting from Application No. 36744-C are on file at the Commission offices
in Austin, Texas; and are matters of official record available for public-
inspection; and be it known further that these presents do - evidence the -
authority and the duty of the City of Selma to provide such utility service in
accordance with the laws of this State and Rules of this Commission, subject
only to any. power and responsibility of this Commission to revoke or amend
this Certificate in whole or in part upon a subsequent showing that the pubhc :
convenience and necessity would be better served thereby.

Issued at Austin, Texas, this

For the Commission
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CONSENT FORM
Applicant’s Name: City of Garden Ridge -
Application Nos.: 36744-C

0 I concur with the recommendation contained in the staff memorandum
transmitted by letter dated

a I do not concur with and intend to respond to the recommendation contained . S

in the staff memorandum transmitted by letter dated .1 understand -
that I have 14 days from the date of this letter to provide my response.

{ : _
I am authorized by the City of Selma to sign this form.

Sighature:

Pririfed Name:

Relationship to Applicant:

Date sighed:

~ Mail or Fax to:
Kamal Adhikari, E.I.T.
. ,Plan and Groundwater Review Section, MC 159
. : ~Water Supply Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
: P.O. Box 13087
Austin, TX 78711-3087 -
Fax: (512) 239-6972




CONSENT FORM

Applicant’s Name: City of Garden Ridge
Application Nos.: 36744-C

,&' I concur with the recommenéation contained in the staff memorandum
transmitted by letter dated

a I do not concur with and intend to respond to the recommendation contained
in the staff memorandum transmitted by letter dated . I understand

that I have 14 days from the date of this letter to provide my response.

I am authorized: 2 -Glt\y of Garden Ridge to sign this form.

Signature? _ A\ j >

Printed I\Empl:rcuf F FPJ}W&EMM’\
Relationship to Alpp“cant I’VL a,\/p r ’ RE @ EI v E D ,
Date signed: _| 552‘4” !QOH | } |

JAN 26 2011
TEXAS ugs-;mssmm
. H ,
- ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY o

Mail or Fax to:
Kamal Adhikari, E.LT.
Plan and Groundwater Review Section, MC 159
Water Supply Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
P.O. Box 13087
Austin, TX 78711-3087
Fax: (512) 239-6972




APPIH
.Applfcatlon

kwa to sign this 'form,'





Bryan W. Shaw, Ph.D., Chairman

Buddy Garcia, Commissioner

Carlos Rubinstein, Commissioner

Mark R. Vickery, P.G., Executive Director

Texas CommisSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution
May 4, 2011

LaDonna Castafiuela, Chief Clerk

Texas Commision on Environmental quality
P.0O. Box 13087, MC 105

Austin, Texas 78711-3087

Re: City of Garden Ridge/City of Selma 13.248 Agreement
TCEQ Docket No. 2011-0359-UCR

Dear Ms. Castafiuela:

Enclosed please find a copy of the following supplemental documents for inclusion in
the background material for this matter, which is currently scheduled for the May 11,
2011, Agenda:

Letters to the cities

Revised 13.248 CCN Transfer Map

Consent form from the City of Garden Ridge (The City of Selma signed a consent form
and deposited it in the U.S. Mail, but it has not yet arrived.)

An error on the map attached to the original 13.248 consent forms, which were signed
by the City of Garden Ridge and the City of Selma, was recently discovered. The map
was inconsistent with the contract entered into by the cities. Specifically, the area
shown on the map was larger than the area intended to be transferred by the contract.
TCEQ staff revised the map to accurately reflect the intent of the parties. Both cities
received copies of the revised map and signed the consent forms.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me at extension 2253.

Sincerely,

Droptos Hr—

Douglas M. Brown
Staff Attorney
Environmental Law Division

Enclosure

P.O. Box 13087 Austin, Texas 78711-3087 512-239-1000 Internet address: www.tceq.state.tx.us

printed on recyclec paper using soy-besed ink
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Bryan W. Shaw, Ph.D., Chairman

Buddy Garcia, Commissioner

Carlos Rubinstein, Commissioner

Mark R. Vickery, .G, Executive Director

TrxAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution

May 2, 2011

CERTIFIED MAIL

Honorable Tom Daly, Mayor
City of Selma

9375 Corporate Drive

Selma, Texas 78154

Re: Contract Service Agreement Pursuant to Texas Water Code, Section 13.248, from
the City of Garden Ridge, Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) No.
11253, to Transfer a Portion of CCN No. 11522 from the City of Selma in Comal
County; Application No. 36744-C

CN: 600704720; RN: 101391217 (City of Garden Ridge)
CN: 60066516;); RN: 101388817 (City of Selma)

Honorable Mayor Daly:

As you are aware, TCEQ sent you map and certificate for this application on January 14,
2011, and received your signed consent form on J anuary 26, 2011. However; after
further review of the file, it was determined that the map we sent you incorrectly
identified the areas that the City of Garden Ridge and the City of Selma agreed to
transfer in their signed agreement. We have revised the map to correctly reflect the
areas that both the cities have agreed to transfer (approximately 7.14 acres).

Enclosed is the revised map and certificate for the above referenced application.
Please review the map to determine if it correctly represents the actions in the City of
Garden Ridge and the City of Selma’s pending matters. -

If you agree that the map is accurate, please sign the CONSENT FORM, mark the line
that says you concur and return the signed statement. We recommend keeping a copy of
the letter you signed along with the documents listed above for your records.

If you believe that the map is inaccurate or you disagree that it correctly represents the
City of Garden Ridge and the City of Selma’s intentions in the matter referenced above,
please mark the line on the CONSENT FORM that says you do not concur, sign the

form and return it to the address or fax number on the form.. ‘

P.O. Box 13087 Austin, Texas 78711-3087 512-239-1000 Internet address: www.iceq.state.tx.us

printed on recycled paper using soy-based ink





Honorable Tom Daly, Mayor
May 2, 2011
Page 2

If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Kamal Adhikari by phone at 512/239-
0680, by fax at 512/239-6972, by email at kamal.adhikari@tceq.state.gov, or if by
correspondence, include MC-159 in the letterhead address.

Sincerely, m
Tammy Benter, Manager
- Utilities & Districts Section

Water Supply Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

TB/KA/If

Enclosures (map, certificate & consent form)





CONSENT FORM
Applicant’s Name: City of Garden Ridge
Application Nos.: 36744-C

Q I concur with the recommendation contained in the staff memorandum
transmitted by letter dated May 2, 2011.

a I do not concur with and intend to respond to the recommendation contained in
the staff memorandum transmitted by letter dated May 2, 2011. I understand
that I have 14 days from the date of this letter to provide my response.

I am authorized by the City of Selma to sign this form.

_ Signatufe:

Printed Name:

Relationship to Applicant:

Date signed:

Mail or Fax to:

Kamal Adhikari, E.L.T.

Plan and Groundwater Review Section, MC 159
Water Supply Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

P.O. Box 13087

Austin, TX 78711-3087

Fax: (512) 239-6972






Texas Commission On
Environmental Quality

By These Presents Be It Known To All That

City of Selma

having duly applied for certification to provide water utility service for the convenience
and necessity of the public, and it having been determined by this commission that the
pubhc convenience and necessity would in fact be advanced by the provision of such
service by this Applicant, is entitled to and is hereby granted thzs

Certlﬁcate of Convenience and Necessity No. 11522

to provide continuous and adequate water utility service to that service area or those
service areas in Bexar, Comal and Guadalupe Counties as by final Order or Orders duly -
entered by this Commission, which Order or Orders resulting from Application No.
36744~-C are on file at the Commission offices in Austin, Texas; and are matters of
official record available for public inspection; and be it known further that these
presents do evidence the authority and the duty of the City of Selma to provide such
utility service in accordance with the laws of this State and Rules of this Commission,

- subject only to any power and responsibility of this Commission to revoke or amend this
Certificate in whole or in part upon a subsequent showing that the public convenience
and necessity would be better served thereby.

Issued at Austin, Texas, this

For the Commission
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Bryan W. Shaw, Ph.D., Chairman

Buddy Garcia, Commissioner

Carlos Rubinstein, Commissioner

Mark R. Vickery, PG, Executive Director

Texas COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution

May 2, 2011

CERTIFIED MAIL

Honorable Tom Daly, Mayor
City of Selma

9375 Corporate Drive

Selma, Texas 78154

Re: Contract Service Agreement Pursuant to Texas Water Code, Section 13.248, from
the City of Garden Ridge, Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) No.
11253, to Transfer a Portion of CCN No. 11522 from the City of Selma in Comal
County; Application No. 36744-C

CN: 600704720; RN: 101391217 (City of Garden Ridge)
CN: 600665169; RN: 101388817 (City of Selma)

Honorable Mayor Daly:

As you are aware, TCEQ sent you map and certificate for this application on January 14,
2011, and received your signed consent form on January 26, 2011. However; after
further review of the file, it was determined that the map we sent you incorrectly
identified the areas that the City of Garden Ridge and the City of Selma agreed to
transfer in their signed agreement. We have revised the map to correctly reflect the
areas that both the cities have agreed to transfer (approximately 7.14 acres).

Enclosed is the revised map and certificate for the above referenced application,
Please review the map to determine if it correctly represents the actions in the City of
Garden Ridge and the City of Selma’s pending matters

If you agree that the map is accurate, please sign the CONSENT FORM, mark the 11ne
that says you concur and return the signed statement. We recommend keepmg a copy of
the letter you signed along with the documents listed above for your records.

If you believe that the map is inaccurate or you disagree that it correctly represents the
City of Garden Ridge and the City of Selma’s intentions in the matter referenced above,
please mark the line on the CONSENT FORM that says you do not concur, sign the

form and return it to the address or fax number on the form. '

P.O. Box 13087 Austin, Texas 78711—3087' 512-239-1000 Internet address: www.tceq.state.tx.us

printed on recycled paper using soy-based ink





Homnorable Tom Daly, Mayor
May 2, 2011
Page 2

If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Kamal Adhikari by phone at 512/ 239-'
0680, by fax at 512/239-6972, by email at kamal.adhikari@tceq.state.gov, or if by
correspondence, include MC-159 in the letterhead address.

Sincerely,

-

Tammy Benter, Manager

- Utilities & Districts Section

Water Supply Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

TB/KA/1f

Enclosures (map, certificate & consent form)





CONSENT FORM
Applicant’s Name: City of Garden Ridge
Application Nos.: 36744-C

| I concur with the recommendation contained in the staff memorandum
transmitted by letter dated May 2, 2011.

Q I do not concur with and intend to respond to the recommendation contained in
the staff memorandum transmitted by letter dated May 2, 2011. I understand
that I have 14 days from the date of this letter to provide my response.

I am authorized by the City of Selma to sign this form. |

Signature:

Printed Name:

Relationship to Applicant:

Date signed: _

Mail or Fax to:

Kamal Adhikari, E.I.T.

Plan and Groundwater Review Section, MC 159
Water Supply Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

P.O. Box 13087 '

Austin, TX 78711-3087

Fax: (512) 239-6972





Texas Commission On
Environmental Quality

By These Presents Be It Known To All That

City of Selma

having duly applied for certification to provide water utility service for the convenience
and necessity of the public, and it having been determined by this commission that the

. pubhc convenience and necessfcy would in fact be advanced by the provision of such

service by this Applicant, is entitled to and is hereby granted ths

Certlﬁcate of Convenience and Necessity No. 11522

to provide continuous and adequate water utility service to that service area or those
service areas in Bexar, Comal and Guadalupe Counties as by final Order or Orders duly - -
entered by this Commission, which Order or Orders resulting from Application No.
36744-C are on file at the Commission offices in Austin, Texas; and are matters of
official record available for public inspection; and be it known further that these
presents do evidence the authority and the duty of the City of Selma to provide such
utility service in accordance with the laws of this State and Rules of this Commission,

- subject only to any power and responsibility of this Commission to revoke or amend this

Certificate in whole or in part upon a subsequent showing that the public convenience
and necessity would be better served thereby.

Issued at Austin, Texas, this

For the Commission
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CONSENT FORM

Applicant’s Name: City of Garden Ridge
Application Nos.: 36744-C

_ I concur with the recommendation contained in the staff memorandum
transmitted by letter dated May 2, 2011.

g I do not concur with and intend to respond to the recommendation contained in
the staff memorandum transmitted by letter dated May 2, 2011. I understand
that I have 14 days from the date of this letter to provide my response.

[am authorizg\:d by '\ f Garden Ridge to sign this form.
Signature: // ‘ ' / :
Printed N a&ﬁé’;\/\ \T@ ‘\/ \YC ‘\@/1 b 'fl"v\-"\""

Relationship to Appllcant f’l‘)f‘?d‘ic // M /74

Date signed: 5_ - 3" /1

Mail or Fax to:
. Kamal Adhikari, E.IT.
Plan and Groundwater Review Section, MC 159
Water Supply Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
P.O. Box 13087 ’
Austin, TX 78711-3087
Fax: (512) 239-6972











Bryan W. Shaw, Ph.D., Chairman

Buddy Garcia, Commissioner

Carlos Rubinstein, Commissioner

Mark R. Vickery, P.G., Executive Directfor

TExAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution
May 4, 2011

LaDonna Castafiuela, Chief Clerk

Texas Commision on Environmental quality
P.O. Box 13087, MC 105

Austin, Texas 78711-3087

Re: City of Garden Ridge/City of Selma 13.248 Agreement
TCEQ Docket No. 2011-0359-UCR

Dear Ms. Castafiuela:

Enclosed please find a copy of the following supplemental document for inclusion in the
background material for this matter, which is currently scheduled for the May 11, 2011,
Agenda:

Consent form from the City of Selma

An error on the map attached to the original 13.248 consent forms, which were signed
by the City of Garden Ridge and the City of Selma, was recently discovered. The map
was inconsistent with the contract entered into by the cities. Specifically, the area
shown on the map was larger than the area intended to be transferred by the contract.
TCEQ staff revised the map to accurately reflect the intent of the parties. Both cities
received copies of the revised map and signed the consent forms.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me at extension 2253.

Sincerely,

P o

Douglas M. Brown
Staff Attorney
Environmental Law Division

Enclosure

P.O. Box 13087 Austin, Texas 78711-3087 512-239-1000 Internet address: www.tceq.state.tx.us

printed on recycled paper using soy-based ink





CONSENT FORM
Applicant’s Name: City of Garden Ridge
Application Nos.: 36744-C

I concur with the recommendation contained in the staff memorandum
transmitted by letter dated May 2, 2011.

0 I do not concur with and intend to respond to the recommendation contained in
the staff memorandum transmitted by letter dated May 2, 2011. I understand
that I have 14 days from the date of this letter to provide my response.

I am authorized by the City of Selma to sign this form.

Signature:

Printed Name: _7Zox 22/

- Relationship to Applicant: _Zsyee o Sk

Datesigned: _ &#Y 3, 20/

KENNETH E. ROBERTS | _
Mgg;mng'ggg’;a'ges Mail or Fax to:
...................................... Kamal Adhikari, E.I.T.
Plan and Groundwater Review Section, MC 159
Water Supply Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
P.O. Box 13087
Austin, TX 78711-3087
Fax: (512) 239-6972






